NovaPro UHD

All-in-One Controller



User Manual

Contents

1 Safety Instructions	
1.1 Environmental Requirements	
1.2 Operation Requirements	
1.3 Personal Safety	
1.4 Electrical Safety Labels	
2 Overview	
3 Appearance	2
3.1 Front Panel	2
3.2 Rear Panel	2
4 Appliestions	
5 Menu Operations	
5.1 Home Screen	
5.2 Screen Brightness	
5.3 Screen Settings	
5.3.1 Quick Configuration	
5.3.2 Advanced Configuration	
5.3.3 Save to RV Card	
5.3.4 More Settings	
5.4 Layer Settings	
5.4.1 Layer	
5.4.1.1 Layer Properties	
5.4.2 LOGO	
5.4.3 OSD	
5.4.4 BKG	
5.5 Input Settings	
5.5.1 DVI Input Mode	
5.5.2 Input Source	
5.5.3 Input Source Resolution	
5.5.4 Input Color	
5.5.5 Color Range	
5.5.6 HDCP	
5.6 Preset Settings	
5.7 Image Mosaic	
5.8 Display Control	
5.9 Advanced Functions	
5.9.1 HDR	
5.9.2 Low Latency	
5.9.3 OPT Mode	
5.9.4 AUX	
5.10 General Settings	
5.10.1 Synchronization	
5.10.2 Hot Backup	
5.10.3 FN Button	
5.10.4 Monitor	
5.10.5 Miscellaneous	
5.10.6 Factory Reset	
5.10.7 Firmware Update	
5.10.8 About Us	



5.11 Communication Settings	
5.11.1 Communication Mode	
5.11.2 Network Settings	
5.12 Langugage	
6 Built-in Platform Master VI	
6.1 Home Page	
6.2 Screen Configuration	
6.2.1 Adding Cabinets	
6.2.2 Cabinet Connection	
6.3 Layer Configuration	
6.3.1 System	
6.3.2 Settings	
6.3.3 OSD	
6.3.4 Adding Layers	
6.3.5 Preset Settings	
6.3.6 Image Mosaic	51
6.4 Settings	
7 Web Operations	53
7.1 Overview	53
7.1.1 Device Connection	53
7.1.2 Web Page Login	
7.1.3 Web UI Introduction	
7.2 Screen Configuration	
7.2.1 Screen Brightness	
7.2.2 Screen Configuration	
7.2.2.1 Quick Configuration	
7.2.2.2 Advanced Configuration	
7.2.3 LED Screen Color	
7.3 Programming	
7.3.1 Input Settings	
7.3.2 Adding Layers monorties	
7.3.2.2 Input Crop	
7.3.3 BKG	
7.3.3.1 Adding BKG	67
7.3.3.2 BKG Operations	71
7.3.4 OSD	72
7.3.4.1 Adding OSD	
7.3.5 LOGO	
7.3.5.2 LOGO Operations	
7.3.6 Transition Settings	79
7.3.7 PGM Edit	
7.4 Preset	
7.4.1 Saving Presets	
7.4.2 Loading Presets	
7.4.3 Preset Operations	
7.5 Settings	
7.5.1 Output Settings	
7.5.2 AUX Settings	
7.5.3 Test Pattern	
7.5.4 Synchronization Mode	
7.5.5 System Mode	
7.5.5.1 Hot Backup	
1.5.5.2 OF 1 Glaus	



7.5.6 Network Settings	
7.5.7 HDR Settings	
7.5.8 Low Latency	
7.5.9 Firmware Update	
7.5.10 Date and Time	
7.5.11 Factory Reset	
7.5.12 Change Password	
7.5.13 Self-Test	
8 Specifications	
9 Video Source Features	

1 Safety Instructions

1.1 Environmental Requirements

- Ensure adequate air flow in the equipment room.
- Take measures to prevent dust, water and static electricity.
- Avoid long-term direct sunlight.
- Do not place the equipment in a position near fire and heat.

1.2 Operation Requirements

- Only trained technicians may repair the equipment.
- Save the packing boxes and materials for future storage and shipping of the equipment.
- Wear a wrist band and insulating gloves when touching ESD sensitive components.
- Handle the equipment with care at all times. Hold the handles or bottom of the equipment when you move it.
- Place the equipment in a stable position.
- Be careful not to drop anything into the equipment.
- Do not bundle the signal wires and the strong current wires or high voltage wires together.
- Avoid stacking of equipment. It is suggested that you leave 1U space between equipment, keep the cooling vents open and maintain a minimum distance of 10 cm between the vents and other objects.
- Keep the equipment away from conductors that attract lightning to avoid strike.
- Do not operate the equipment with excessive force.

1.3 Personal Safety

- Ensure that the equipment is well grounded. Make sure that the PE wire is in good condition and grounded. If the equipment has a grounding connector, connect it to the ground.
- Place the equipment in a stable position to prevent personal injury caused by dropping.

- Do not place the equipment in an area containing explosive materials.
- Do not place the equipment in a corrosive environment.
- Do not place the equipment in a strong electromagnetic environment.
- Do not make the boards contact with each other.
- Do not touch the board circuits, components, connectors or slots with bare hands.
- Do not repair the equipment by yourself. Please contact NovaStar for repair at any time.
- Only replace faulty parts with NovaStarauthorized replacement parts.
- Ensure that the equipment is well grounded. Make sure that the PE wire is in good condition and grounded. If the equipment has a grounding connector, connect it to the ground.
- Place the equipment in a stable position to prevent personal injury caused by dropping.
- Ensure that the wires are not exposed. Please repair or replace the wires in a timely manner if they are broken.
- Do not perform any equipment operation or cable connection outdoors in a thunderstorm.
- Do not wear watches, rings, or other metal jewelry when replacing faulty parts or repairing the equipment.
- Ensure that the wires are not exposed. Please repair or replace the wires in a timely manner if they are broken.
- Do not perform any equipment operation or cable connection outdoors in a thunderstorm.
- Do not wear watches, rings, or other metal jewelry when replacing faulty parts or repairing the equipment.



1.4 Electrical Safety Labels

Label	Description
	The device is supplied by multiple power sources. Unplug all power cords after powering off the device.
4	Electrical shock hazard

2

Overview

The NovaPro UHD is a new all-in-one controller developed by NovaStar. By integrating video processing, video control and LED screen configuration functions into one controller, this product is capable of receiving a variety of video signals, processing and sending images of resolutions up to Ultra HD 4Kx2K@60Hz and 8Kx1K@60Hz, and drives up to 10,400,000 pixels.

With built-in Master VI smart platform, the NovaPro UHD supports layer creation, property settings, and screen configuration by simple mouse, keyboard and monitor operations.

The NovaPro UHD can send the processed video to LED display through Neutrik Ethernet ports and OPT ports. Thanks to the powerful video processing and sending capabilities, this product is well suited for high-end rental applications, stage control systems and fine-pitch LED displays.

3 Appearance

3.1 Front Panel



ON/OFF

USB Ports

Button	Function
On/OFF button	Press the button to power on the device.Hold down the button to power off or restart the device.
Layer buttons	 Layer operations: Press a button to quickly add a layer. Hold down an added-layer button to close the layer. Status LEDs:



Button	Function
	 On (blue): The layer is open, and the input source is accessed normally. Flashing (blue): The layer is being edited, and the input source is accessed normally. On (white): The layer is open, but no input source is accessed. Flashing (white): The layer is being edited, but no input source is accessed or the input source is abnormal. Off: The layer is not added.
Input source buttons	 Input source operations: Press a button to quickly access the input menu screen or switch the input source for the selected layer. Status LEDs: On (blue) for all number buttons: The number input function is enabled. On (blue): The input source is accessed and in normal use. On (white): The input source is accessed but not in use. Off: No input source is accessed or the input source is abnormal.
TFT screen	Displays current device status, menus, submenus and messages.
Knob	Press the knob to confirm the settings or enter the submenu.Rotate the knob to select a menu item or adjust a parameter.
Function buttons	 Navigation button: Hold it down to enter or exit the quick navigation screen. FTB: Make the LED screen to fade to black. LOGO: Access the LOGO menu. PRESET: Access the preset menu. FREEZE: Freeze the output image displayed on LED screen. OSD: Access the OSD menu. FN: Custom function button. Press it to access the function menu and hold it down to customize the function for the button. TEST: Access the test pattern menu. BKG: Access the BKG menu. TAKE: Send the PVW to PGM with a transition effect. A total of 16 transition effects are supported. CUT: Send the PVW directly to PGM without a transition effect.
ESC button	Press the button to exit the current menu or cancel the operation.
USB ports	2x USB portsInsert a USB drive to perform system update.Connect a mouse or keyboard.

3.2 Rear Panel



Note:

The NovaPro UHD supports the replacement of the HDMI input card (standard configuration). You can buy a DVI input card to replace the HDMI input card.

Input		
Connector	Quantity	Description
12G-SDI	4	• Supports ST-2082-1 (12G), ST-2081-1 (6G), ST-424 (3G) and ST-292 (HD).
		 Up to 4K×2K@60Hz input resolution
		 Connector 4 supports deinterlacing processing.
		 Supports 12G-SDI output with loop-through.
		Note:
		When the input source is a 12G-SDI signal, a CANARE / L-4.5CHD+ / UHDTV-SDI SDI cable is required and it cannot be longer than 50 m.
DP 1.2	1	 Up to 4K×2K@60Hz (8K×1K@60Hz) input resolution
		HDCP 1.3 compliant
		 Does not support interlaced input signals.
HDMI 2.0	1	Up to 4Kx2K@60Hz (8Kx1K@60Hz) input resolution
		HDCP 1.4 and HDCP 2.2 compliant
		 Does not support interlaced input signals.
		Supports HDMI 2.0 output with loop-through.
HDMI 1.3	4	• D_4×HDMI 1.3 input card (can be replaced by a D_4×DVI input card)
		Up to 1920×1080@60Hz input resolution for each connector
		HDCP 1.3 compliant
		 Supports interlaced input signals.
Output		
Connector	Quantity	Description
Ethernet port	16	Gigabit Ethernet outputs
		Max. loading capacity: 10.4 million pixels
		Max. width: 16,384 pixels
		Max. height: 8,192 pixels
OPT 1–4	4	10G fiber optical outputs (copy and hot backup)
		 OPT 1 transmits data on Ethernet ports 1–8.
		OPT 2 transmits data on Ethernet ports 9–16.



		OPT 3 is the copy/hot backup channel for OPT 1.	
		OPT 4 is the copy/hot backup channel for OPT 2.	
MVR	1	HDMI 1.3 connector, used for Multiviewer to monitor input sources, PVM or PGM, or perform mixed monitoring	
AUX	1	HDMI 1.3 connector, used for connecting to an auxiliary device such as a teleprompter	
Control			
Connector	Quantity	Description	
ETHERNET	1	For PC communication or network connection	
USB	3	 1x USB2.0 (Type-B): Connect to the PC for device debugging. 2x USB2.0 (Type-A): Insert a USB drive to update the system. Connect to a mouse and keyboard. Output port for linking another device unit 	
GENLOCK IN-LOOP	1	Connect to a synchronization signal source.IN: Accept the sync source.LOOP: Loop the sync source.	
CONTROL UI	1	Connect to a monitor for displaying the user interface of the Master VI platform software.	



Applications



Note:

This product can be placed horizontally only. Do not mount vertically or upside-down.

The product can be mounted in a standard 19-inch rack capable of withstanding at least four times the total weight of the mounted equipment. Four M5 screws should be used to fix the product.



Link Control

The NovaPro UHD allows for linking of at most 4 device units. In link control mode, when you connect a monitor, mouse and keyboard to any of the device units, you can control each device unit independently through Master VI.

 NovaPro UHD
 Master VI

 1
 Image: state state

5

Menu Operations

The connections are shown as follows.

Button Descriptions

Knob:

- On the home screen, press the knob to enter the main menu screen.
- On the main menu screen, rotate the knob to select a menu item, and press the knob to confirm the selection or enter the submenu.
- When a menu item with parameters is selected, rotate the knob to adjust the parameters. Please note that after adjustment, you need to press the knob again to confirm the adjustment.

ESC:

- Press the button to exit the current menu or cancel the operation.
- On the navigation screen, hold it down to exit the screen.

5.1 Home Screen

Figure 5-1 Home Screen novaPro UHD Layer A GEN DP HDMI HDR G INPUT2 SDI3 Screen^B1920x1080@59.96 C 🍎 65% D 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 Port OPT 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16

Area	lcon	Description
A	6 SDI3 6 SDI -2	Display the layer number, status and input source. Number: 6 Status: Open or closed Input source: SDI
В	Screen 1920x1080@59.96	Display the resolution of the configured screen.
С	₩ 65%	Display the screen brightness.
D	1 1	Display the device working mode and Ethernet port status.Working mode: PrimaryEthernet port: Connected/Disconnected
		 Display the device working mode and Ethernet port status. Working mode: Backup Ethernet port: Connected/Disconnected flashing: The backup port is enabled. not flashing: The backup port is disabled.
	1	The Ethernet port of the fiber converter connected to the NovaPro UHD is connected to the LED screen.
E	HotBackup 1 3 2 4 HotBackup 1 3 2 4 Copy 1 3 2 4 Copy	 Display the OPT mode and OPT port status. Hot Backup: OPT mode: Hot backup OPT ports 3 and 4 back up the data on OPT ports 1 and 2. Copy: OPT mode: Copy OPT ports 3 and 4 copy the data on OPT ports 1 and 2. 2 2 2 : OPT port connected/disconnected
F	AUX HDMI	AUX function is turned on and AUX source is displayed.



Area	Icon	Descript	ion
	AUX OFF	AUX fund	ction is turned off.
	Synchronization	Display t enabling	the Genlock source connection status and Genlock function status.
		GEN	 Bottom right green: The Genlock connector is connected. White GEN text: The Genlock function is turned on.
		GEN	 Bottom right green: The Genlock connector is connected. Yellow GEN text: The Genlock function is waiting to be turned on.
		GEN	Bottom right green: The Genlock connector is connected.The Genlock function is turned off.
		GEN	Bottom right gray: The Genlock connector is disconnected.The Genlock function is turned on.
		GEN	Bottom right gray: The Genlock connector is disconnected.The Genlock function is waiting to be turned on.
G		GEN	Bottom right gray: The Genlock connector is disconnected.The Genlock function is turned off.
	HDR	HDR	HDR function is turned on.
		HDR	HDR function is turned off.
	USB drive		A USB drive is inserted and has been detected by the system.
			No USB drive is detected.
	Communication	•	The current communication mode is USB Preferred.
		Ţ	The current communication mode is LAN Preferred.
		Š	The device is not connected to the control PC.

5.2 Screen Brightness

Adjust the screen brightness in an eye-friendly way according to the current ambient brightness. The appropriate adjustment of screen brightness can also extend the service life of the LED screen.

60%
>
>
>
>
>
>
>

Step 1 Press the knob to enter the main menu screen.



- Step 2 Select Screen Brightness and press the knob to confirm the selection.
- Step 3 Rotate the knob to adjust the brightness value, and the LED screen will display the effect in real-time. Then press the knob to apply the brightness when you are satisfied with it.

5.3 Screen Settings

5.3.1 Quick Configuration

Preconditions

- LED screen must be a regular screen.
- Cabinets of the screen must be regular cabinets with the same resolution.
- The following data flow settings are supported. During data flow settings, you must ensure that the physical connection of each port is along the same direction and downward to next one.



• During data flow settings, you must ensure that the Ethernet Port 1 is at the beginning position of the whole physical connection.

Procedure

- Step 1 Power on the LED screen.
- Step 2 Go to Screen Settings > Quick Configuration, and press the knob to enter the quick configuration screen.

Figure 5-3 Quick configuration



- Step 3 Set Cabinet Row Qty and Cabinet Column Qty according to the actual row and column quantities of the cabinets.
- Step 4 Select Port 1 Cabinet Qty to set the quantity of the cabinets loaded by Ethernet port 1.
- Step 5 Select Data Flow and press the knob, then select an appropriate one.

Data flow is the physical cabinet connection pattern when viewed in front of the screen.

During data flow settings, you can view the real-time effects of different data flow settings on LED display by rotating the knob. When you are satisfied with the LED display image, press the knob to apply the settings.

5.3.2 Advanced Configuration

Set the cabinet row and column quantities, horizontal offset, vertical offset and data flow of the cabinets loaded by a single Ethernet port.

Step 1 Press the knob to enter the main menu screen.



- Step 2 Go to Screen Settings > Advanced Configuration, and press the knob to enter the advanced configuration screen.
- Step 3 Turn on the advanced configuration function, and then set the cabinet row and column quantities, horizontal offset, vertical offset and data flow for the target Ethernet port.



5.3.3 Save to RV Card

Send and save the screen configuration to the receiving card. The configuration data will not be lost after the device is powered off.

5.3.4 More Settings

Mapping

Mapping is used to show the relations between the cabinets of LED screen and the sending devices. You can view or check the connections between the cabinets.

Note:

This function is only applicable to the receiving cards that are connected to the NovaPro UHD support the mapping function. For the related receiving card information, please visit our official website www.novastar.tech.

Figure 5-5 Mapping



P:05 indicates the Ethernet port number of the sending device.#001 indicates the number of the cabinet loaded by the Ethernet port.

Load RCFGx Files

After the LED screen is powered on, if a certain cabinet or the entire LED screen is not lit, you can save the receiving card configuration files (*.rcfgx) that have been configured on NovaLCT software to the USB drive, and then load the files from the USB drive.

Figure 5-6 Loading RCFGx files



Note:

The NovaPro UHD does not support importing the configuration files by directly connecting to NovaLCT.

LED Screen Color

Adjust the color temperature and Gamma value of LED screen to make the images displayed on the screen more clear and vivid.

- Color Temperature: Adjust the cool or warm degree of images displayed on LED screen.
- Gamma: Adjust the image distortion degree from the input to output. The greater the value is, the more distorted the image will be. The value ranges from 0.25 to 4.00.

5.4 Layer Settings

5.4.1 Layer

5.4.1.1 Layer Properties

Figure 5-7 Layer properties



Menu	Description					
Select Layer	Select the desired layer. At most 6 layers are supported.					
	Note:					
	Press a number button in the LAYER area on the device front panel to enter the layer settings screen and open the selected layer.					
Status	Open or close the layer.					
Input Source	Select the input source for the selected layer.					
	Note:					
	Press an input source button in the SOURCE area on the device front panel to quickly select an input source for the layer.					
Layer Adjust	Adjust the aspect ratio, size and other parameters of the layer.					
	Aspect Ratio: Set the proportional relationship between the layer's width and height.					



Menu	Description							
	The options include 1:1, 5:4, 4:3, 3:2, 16:9, 16:10 and Custom.							
	Keep Ratio: Keep the aspect ratio.							
	H Width: The value ranges from 64 to 32768, and defaults to 800.							
	• V Height: The value ranges from 64 to 32768, and defaults to 600.							
	Initial X: Set the horizontal initial coordinate of the layer.							
	 Initial Y: Set the vertical initial coordinate of the layer. 							
	Full Screen: Make the layer display in full screen.							
	Reset: Reset all the settings to defaults.							
Priority	Set the layer display order. The value ranges from 1 to 6.							
	• 1: The layer is at the bottom.							
	6: The layer is on the top.							
Input Crop	Crop the input source image and make the cropped part display in full screen.							
	 Status: Turn on or turn off this function for the selected layer. 							
	• H Width: The horizontal width of the current input source. The value ranges from 64 to horizontal width of the input source.							
	• V Height: The vertical height of the current input source. The value ranges from 64 to vertical height of the input source.							
	• Initial X: The horizontal initial coordinate of the cropped part upon the current input source. The default value is ${\bf 0}$.							
	- Initial Y: The vertical initial coordinate of the cropped part upon the current input source. The default value is ${\bf 0}$.							
Advanced	Set the copying, flipping and other properties of the layer.							
	For details, please see 5.4.1.2 Advanced.							
Reset	Reset all the layer settings to defaults.							

Figure 5-8 Layer parameter descriptions

LED Screen





Input: 1920×1080@60Hz

Layer Size: 1920×1080

5.4.1.2 Advanced

Сору

Add a new layer displaying the cloned or mirrored image.

Menu	Description
Status	Turn on or turn off the layer copying function. The options are None , Clone , Left Mirror and Right Mirror . None indicates turning off the function.
Initial X	Set the horizontal initial coordinate of the new layer. The vertical initial coordinate of the new layer keeps the same with that of the old one.
Reset	Reset all the settings to defaults.

Figure 5-10 Clone

LED Screen



Figure 5-11 Right mirror

<section-header>



LED Screen



Mask

Mask a certain part of the layer. The area that has been masked is transparent and the layer size remains the same. The adjustment unit is pixel.

Menu	Description
Status	Turn on or turn off the layer mask function.
Mode	The options are Mask Top , Mask Bottom , Mask Left and Mask Right . The value ranges from 0 to the vertical height/horizontal width of the layer, and defaults to 0 .
Reset	Reset all the settings to defaults.

Figure 5-13 Mask (mask top, bottom, left and right)



Opacity

Set the opacity of the layer. The value ranges from 0% (transparent) to 100% (nontransparent). The default value is **100%** and the adjustment stepping is 1%.

Figure 5-14 50% opacity

LED Screen



Flip

Flip the layer image. The options are None, H, V and H/V. None indicates not flipping.



Color

Adjust the layer color parameters, including brightness, contrast, saturation, hue, monochrome and inverting colors.

Menu	Description			
Brightness	Adjust the brightness of the layer image.			
	The value ranges from 0 to 100, and defaults to 50 .			
Contrast	Adjust the contrast of the layer image.			
	The value ranges from 0 to 100, and defaults to 50 .			
Saturation	Adjust the saturation of the layer image.			
	The value ranges from 0 to 100, and defaults to 50 .			
Hue	Adjust the hue of the layer image.			
	The value ranges from –180 to +180, and defaults to 0 .			
Monochrome	Select whether to set the layer image to gray scale image.			
	The default option is Off .			
Invert Colors	Invert the color to its complementary color that combined with the original color makes white (RGB: 255,255,255).			
	For example, if the original color is red (RGB: 255,0,0), the inverted color is cyan (RGB: 0, 255, 255).			



Shape

Set the layer shape. The options are Normal, Heart, Star, Circle, Crescent, Oval, and Diamond.



Figure 5-18 Oval layer

5.4.2 LOGO

Display the company Logo.

Menu	Description
Status	Turn on or turn off the LOGO function. The default option is Off .
	Note:
	If no LOGO images are added or imported, the LOGO function cannot be turned on.



Menu	Description				
Select LOGO	Select a desired LOGO file. The LOGO file is sent by the built-in platform Master VI.				
Initial X	Set the horizontal initial coordinate of the LOGO file upon the screen. The value ranges from -8192 to $+8192$, and defaults to 0 .				
Initial Y	Set the vertical initial coordinate of the LOGO file upon the screen. The value ranges from -8192 to $+8192$, and defaults to 0 .				
Opacity	Set the opacity of the added LOGO file. The value ranges from 0% (transparent) to 100% (nontransparent), and defaults to 100%.				
Сгор	 Status: Turn on or turn off the LOGO cropping function. The default option is Off. H Width: Set the horizontal width of the LOGO file after cropping. V Height: Set the vertical height of the LOGO file after cropping. Initial X: Set the horizontal initial coordinate of the cropped part upon the LOGO file. Initial Y: Set the vertical initial coordinate of the cropped part upon the LOGO file. Reset: Reset all the settings to defaults. 				

Note:

- LOGO has the highest priority and is placed on the top of OSD and BKG.
- Press the **LOGO** button in the **FUNCTION** area on the device front panel to turn on the LOGO function and enter the LOGO settings screen.



5.4.3 OSD

Set the text and picture overlay display effect for the output image.

Menu	Description					
Status	Turn on or turn off the OSD function. The default option is Off.					
Select OSD	Select a desired OSD text or image.					
Initial X	Set the horizontal initial coordinate of the OSD file upon the screen. The value ranges from –8192 to +8192, and defaults to 0 .					
Initial Y	Set the vertical initial coordinate of the OSD file upon the screen. The value ranges from -8192 to $+8192$, and defaults to 0 .					
Speed	Set the OSD scrolling speed. The value ranges from 1 to 3, and defautls to 1 . This function is available when OSD is text.					
Direction	Set the OSD scrolling direction. The options are From Right to Left (default) and From Left to Right . This function is available when OSD is text.					
Opacity	Set the OSD opacity. The valur ranges from 0% (transparent) to 100% (Nontransparent), and defaults to 100% .					
Сгор	 Status: Turn on or turn off the OSD cropping function. The default option is Off. H Width: Set the horizontal width of the OSD file after cropping. 					



Menu	Description
	V Height: Set the vertical height of the OSD file after cropping.
	• Initial X: Set the horizontal initial coordinate of the cropped part upon the OSD file.
	• Initial Y: Set the vertical initial coordinate of the cropped part upon the OSD file.
	Reset: Reset all the settings to defaults.

Note:

- OSD has the second highest priority, and is placed on the top of other layers.
- Press the **OSD** button in the **FUNCTION** area on the device front panel to enter the OSD settings screen.

5.4.4 BKG

Set the background image that has the lowest priority.

Menu	Description					
Status	Turn on or turn off the BKG function. The default option is Off .					
Туре	Select the desired BKG file. The options are Pure Color and Image .					
BKG Image/ Pure Color BKG	• BKG Image: Capture the input source as a BKG image or import a BKG image from Master VI.					
	• Pure Color BKG: Set the individual R, G and B values to set a pure color as the BKG.					
Capture	Source: Select an input source to be captured.					
	 Save To: Set the save location of the captured image. 					
	 If a BKG image already exists in the location, the original image will be overwritten by the new one. 					
	 The location name consists of two parts: BKG and a number. 					
	 At most 16 BKG images can be saved. 					
	 Capture: Save the captured input source image to the selected location. 					
	Note:					
	If the AUX signal source is set to PGM or PVW and the source for capturing is PVW or PGM, the AUX display will flicker during BKG capturing.					



5.5 Input Settings

5.5.1 DVI Input Mode

This menu can be shown and set when the DVI input card is installed. If no DVI card is installed, this menu is hidden.

DVI input card supports Single Link and Dual Link modes.

- Single Link: 4x Single link DVI connectors, each with up to 1920×1080@60Hz input resolution
- Dual Link: 2x Dual-link DVI connector (2 & 4), each with up to 3840×1080@60Hz input resolution





5.5.2 Input Source

The NovaPro UHD provides SDI-1, SDI-2, SDI-3, SDI-4, INPUT1, INPUT2, INPUT3, INPUT4, DP and HDMI input connectors. The input source is named after the input connector.

Rotate the knob to select a desired input source and press the knob to access the input source resolution menu.

Note:

When DP is selected as the input source and the DP source is from the VIO 4K from ANALOG WAY, hold down the **ESC** button on the device front panel to enter the **Parameter Settings** screen and turn on **SWING Configuration**.

5.5.3 Input Source Resolution

Adjust the resolution and frame rate of the input source through either of the following ways.

- Standard resolution
- Custom resolution

```
Figure 5-23 Setting input source resolution
```



Note:

The SDI input source does not support the input resolution settings.



Standard Resolution

Select a standard resolution and frame rate. Rotate the knob to select **Apply** and press the knob to make the settings take effect. If you do not press the knob, the settings will not take effect.

Figure 5-24 Standard resolution

Input Settings				Standard	
DVI Mode	Single Link	Input Resolution		Resolution	3840×2160
Source	HDMI			Frame Rate	60Hz
Standard	>	HDMI 3840×2160@60Hz			Apply
Custom	>		-		
Input Color	>				
Color Range	e Auto				
HDCP	Off				

Input Resolution						
Standard Resolution	Standard Frame Rate (Hz)	SL-DVI	DL-DVI	HDMI 1.3	HDMI 2.0	DP 1.2
1024×768	48/50/59.94/60/75/85	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark
1280×720	23.98/24/25/29.97/30/4 8/50/59.94/60	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark
1280×1024	48/50/59.94/60/75/85	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark
1366×768	50/59.94/60	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	×	×
1440×900	60/75/85	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark
1600×1200	48/50/59.94/60	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark
1680×1050	60	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark
1920×1080	23.98/24/25/29.97/30/4 8/50/59.94/60	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark
1920×1200	50/59.94/60	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark
2048×1080	30/48/50/59.94/60	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark
2048×1152	30	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark
2048×1152	60	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark	\checkmark
2560×1080	50/59.94/60	×	\checkmark	×	\checkmark	\checkmark
2560×1600	50/59.94/60	×	\checkmark	×	\checkmark	\checkmark
2560×1600	120	×	×	×	\checkmark	\checkmark
3840×1080	30/50/59.94/60	×	\checkmark	×	\checkmark	\checkmark
3840×1080	120	×	×	×		\checkmark
3840×2160	30	×	\checkmark	×		\checkmark
3840×2160	60	×	×	×	\checkmark	\checkmark

• $\sqrt{1}$: The connector supports the resolution and frame rate.

• x: The connector does not support the resolution and frame rate.

Custom Resolution

Set a custom width, height and frame rate. Then rotate the knob to select **Apply** and press the knob to make the settings take effect. If you do not press the knob, the settings will not take effect.





Connector	Custom Width Range	Custom Height Range	Custom Frame Rate	Default Width	Default Height	Default Frame Rate
• SL-DVI • HDMI 1.3	800~2048	600~2048	23.98 / 24 / 25 / 29.97 / 30 /	1920	1080	60Hz
DL-DVI	800~3840	600~3840	47.95 / 48 / 50 / 56 / 59.94 / 60 / 70 / 71.93 / 72 /	3840	1080	60Hz
• HDMI 2.0 • DP 1.2	800~3840	600~3840	75 / 85 / 100 / 119.88 / 120	3840	2160	60Hz

5.5.4 Input Color

Adjust the parameters of the input source image.

Menu	Description
Brightness	Adjust the brightness of the input source. The value ranges from 0 to 100, and defaults to 50 .
Contrast	Adjust the contrast of the input source. The value ranges from 0 to 100, and defaults to 50 .
Saturation	Adjust the saturation of the input source. The value ranges from 0 to 100, and defaults to 50 .
Hue	Adjust the hue of the input source. The value ranges from -180 to $+180$, and defaults to 0 .
Gamma	Adjust the Gamma value of the input source. The value ranges from 0.25 to 4.00, and defaults to 1.00 . The stepping is 0.01.
Reset	Reset all the settings to defaults.

5.5.5 Color Range

This function can automatically convert the limited RGB color range to full RGB range for the input source, so the device can process the source precisely.

- Off: Turn off the function.
- On: Turn on the function. It is recommended you turn on the function when the input source has a limited RGB color range.

5.5.6 HDCP

When the HDMI or DVI input card is used, the HDCP function is supported.

• On: Turn on the HDCP function.



• Off: Turn off the HDCP function.

5.6 Preset Settings

The NovaPro UHD supports up to 16 presets. Users can save, load and clear the presets.

- Step 1 Rotate the knob to select Preset Settings and press the knob to enter the submenu.
- Step 2 Rotate the knob to select a desired preset and press the knob to pop up a dialog box. In the displayed box, four preset operations are provided: **Save**, **Load**, **Clear** or **Copy To**.



Menu	Description
Save	Save the current layer layout and settings to the target preset.
Load	Load the selected preset.
Clear	Clear all the contents in the selected preset.
Сору То	Copy the current preset to a target preset.

Note:

If you did not set any layers, BKG, LOGO or OSD, you cannot save a preset.

5.7 Image Mosaic

When the pixel count of the LED screen is larger than the loading capacity of a single NovaPro UHD unit, the image mosaic function is required. At most 4 device units can be linked through the USB cables.

Select Image Mosaic on the main menu screen to enter the image mosaic menu screen.

Figure 5-27 Image mosaic	
Menu	
Screen Brightness	60%
Screen Settings	>
Layer Settings	
Input Settings	>
Preset Settings	>
Image Mosaic	>
Display Control >	
Advanced Functions	>

Image Mosaic	
Status	On
Total H Pixels	7680
Total V Pixels	4320
Load Area Width	3840
Load Area Height	2160
Load Area Initial X	0
Load Area Initial Y	0
	Mage Mosalc Status Total H Pixels Total V Pixels Load Area Width Load Area Height Load Area Initial X Load Area Initial Y

- Status: Turn on or turn off the function.
- Total H Pixels: The horizontal pixels of the LED screen
- Total V Pixels: The vertical pixels of the LED screen
- Load Area Width: The horizontal pixels of the area loaded by the current device
- Load Area Height: The vertical pixels of the area loaded by the current device
- Load Area Initial X: The distance between the left edge of the screen and the top left corner of the area loaded by the current device. The unit is pixel.
- Load Area Initial Y: The distance between the top edge of the screen and the top left corner of the area loaded by the current device. The unit is pixel.

Example

If the pixel count of the LED screen is 7680×4320 which exceeds the loading capacity of a single NovaPro UHD unit, four NovaPro UHD units can be linked together for image mosaic. The connections are shown in the following figure.



Figure 5-28 Multiple device units linked together for image mosaic

Table 5-1 Parameter settings

Device No.	1	2	3	4
Total H Pixels 7680				
Total V Pixels	4320			
Load Area Width	3840			
Load Area Height	2160			
Load Area Initial X	3840	0	0	3840
Load Area Initial Y	0	0	2160	2160

5.8 Display Control

This function is used to control the display. You can set the display to go black, display a test pattern, or go back to normal display. You can also set the transition effect and effect duration.

Menu	Description
Normal	Display the current input source normally.
Freeze	Freeze the current frame of the output image.



Menu	Description
Black Out	Make the screen go black.
Test Pattern	Test the display effect and working status of the LED screen. Test patterns include Pure Color , Gradient , Grid and so on.
Output Color	 Adjust the output image quality and the LED screen will display the effect in real-time. Brightness: The value ranges from 0 to 100, and defaults to 50. The stepping is 1. Contrast: The value ranges from 0 to 100, and defaults to 50. The stepping is 1. Saturation: The value ranges from 0 to 100, and defaults to 50. The stepping is 1. Gamma: The value ranges from 0.25 to 4.00, and defaults to 1.00. The stepping is 0.01. Reset: Reset all the settings to defaults.
PVW to PGM	 Set the display relationship between PVW and PGM. The options are COPY (default) and SWAP. COPY: Send the PVW to PGM. SWAP: Swap the display on PVW and PGM.
Transition Effect	Set the PGM transition effect. Up to 16 transition effects are supported. The default option is Fade .
Effect Duration	Set the duration of the transition effect. The value ranges from 0.5s to 2s, and defaults to 0.5s .

5.9 Advanced Functions

Advanced functions include HDR, low latency, OPT mode and AUX.

5.9.1 HDR

HDR is an acronym for High-Dynamic Range. HDR function can greatly enhance the display image quality, allowing for a more clear and vivid image when the device is used together with A8s/A10s Plus receiving cards.

Figure 5-29 System architecture



- Step 2 Go to Advanced Functions > HDR > Status to turn on the HDR function.
- Step 3 Rotate the knob to adjust the value of each parameter to improve the image quality.

Menu	Description
Peak Screen Brightness	Adjust the screen brightness under normal operation. The value ranges from 100 to 10000, and defaults to 1000 .
Ambient Brightness	Display the ambient brightness. The value ranges from 0 to 200, and defaults to 30 .
Low Grayscale Mode	Adjust the grayscale value of the image displayed on the LED screen. The value ranges from 0 to 50, and defaults to 15 .

Step 4 (Optional) Select **Reset** to reset all the parameters to defaults.

Note:

Currently only HDR10 input source is supported.

When the HDR function is enabled, you must use the receiving cards that support HDR function. For the related receiving card information, you can obtain from our technical support staff or official website www.novastar.tech.

5.9.2 Low Latency

Low latency reduces the input source signal latency from input to output of the NovaPro UHD. This function can reduce the latency from the input source to receiving card to 1 frame when the device works with NovaStar A5 or later receiving cards.

Note:

Before you use the low latancy function, make sure you have turned on the synchronization function and the data runs verically on the LED screen.

5.9.3 OPT Mode

The NovaPro UHD supports two OPT modes: **Hot Backup** (default) and **Copy**.

Menu	Description
Hot Backup	OPT ports 3 and 4 back up the data on OPT ports 1 and 2.
Сору	OPT ports 3 and 4 copy the data on OPT ports 1 and 2.

Hot Backup

Step 1 Perform the hardware connections for hot backup mode.



Note:

If the Ethernet cable of the NovaPro UHD or fiber converter fails, the LED screen can still work normally.

Step 2 Go to Advanced Functions > OPT Mode > Hot Backup to set the OPT mode to hot backup mode.

Сору

Step 1 Perform the hardware connections for copy mode.



Step 2 Go to Advanced Functions > OPT Mode > Copy to set the OPT mode as copy mode.

5.9.4 AUX

This function is used for auxiliary output of input sources, PVW or PGM. You can output the signal source to the connected display device without any processing.

Menu	Description
Status	Turn on or turn off the AUX function. The default option is Off.
Select AUX	Select a desired AUX signal source. The options are all input sources, PVW and PGM.
AUX Scaling	Set the AUX display mode.Full Screen: Display the image in full screen.Proportional: Scale the image proportionally and then display it on the screen.
Follow Preset	 Set whether the AUX follow the preset during switching. On: If there is AUX data in the preset, the AUX input source will be switched during preset switching. Off: The AUX input source will not be switched during preset switching.

Note:

Capturing PVW or PGM will cause transient abnormal display of AUX output image. After the capturing is completed, AUX displays normally.

5.10 General Settings

Figure 5-33 General settings			
General Settings			
Synchronizatior	1 >		
Hot Backup	Set as Primary		
Fn	>		
Monitor	>		
Miscellaneous >			
Factory Reset	>		
Firmware Update >			
About Us	>		

5.10.1 Synchronization

Select a synchronization signal to synchronize all the linked device units.

- Step 1 Rotate the knob to select **Synchronization** and press the knob to enter the submenu.
- Step 2 Rotate the knob to set the synchronization status and source respectively.

Menu	Description
Status	Turn on or turn off the synchronization function. The default option is Off.
Source	Select Genlock or other input sources as the sync source.

5.10.2 Hot Backup

The NovaPro UHD supports two hot backup modes: Set as Primary and Set as Backup.

Menu	Description
Set as Primary	In device backup applications, when the device is set as the primary device, it cannot be used for Ethernet port backup.
Set as Backup	In device backup applications, when the device is set as the backup device, it cannot be used for Ethernet port backup.
Set as Normal	The device is not used for any backup.



Figure 5-34 Data flow for Primary and Backup modes

Quick configuration data flow:

	_	
-		

Actual data flow for primary device:

Advanced configuration data flow:



Actual data flow for backup device:

5.10.3 FN Button

The **FN** button on the device front panel can be customized to a shortcut button for the functions including **Synchronization**, **Capture**, **Quick Configuration** and **Output Color**.

- Press the button to enter the function menu screen.
- Hold down the button to customize the function for the button.

5.10.4 Monitor

Set to monitor all input sources, PVW and PGM, or one of them.

Menu	Description
All	Set to monitor all input sources, PVW and PGM.
Single	Set to monitor the selected input source, PVW or PGM.

5.10.5 Miscellaneous

Output Frame Rate

Set the output frame rate of the image output by Ethernet port. The default setting is 60 Hz.

The supports frame rates are 23.98 Hz, 24 Hz, 25 Hz, 29.97 Hz, 30 Hz, 47.95 Hz, 48 Hz, 50 Hz, 59.94 Hz, 60 Hz, 71.93 Hz, 72 Hz, 75 Hz, 85 Hz, 100 Hz, 119.88 Hz and 120 Hz.

AUX Frame Rate

Set the output frame rate for the AUX connector to fit for the connected auxiliary display device. The default setting is **60 Hz**.

MVR Frame Rate

Set the output frame rate for the MVR connector to fit for the connected display device for monitoring. The default setting is **60 Hz**.

Return to Home

Set the period of time during which the system stays at the current page before returning to the homepage automatically when there is no operation performed. The default setting is **60s** and the maximum value is 3600s.



USB Backup/Restore

Menu	Description
USB Backup	Back up the following information to a USB drive, including the configured presets, PVW and PGM data, LOGO, OSD, BKG, screen configuration, screen brightness, input source color, color range information, AUX data, synchronization settings, hot backup settings, output frame rate, HDR data, low latency settings, OPT mode, display control information and communication settings.
USB Restore	Restore the backup files from the USB drive.

Back up the data to a USB drive or restore the data from the USB drive.

Figure 5-35 USB backup/restore



Date and Time

Set the device date and time.

Menu	Description
Date	Display the device date.
Time	Display the device time.
Change Date and Time	Adjust the Year , Month , Day , Hour , Minute and Second values to change the device date and time.

Self-Test

- **Device Parameter Self-Test**: When problems occur on the device, you can use this function to automatically diagnose the device and send the test result to device maintenance personnel to locate the problems or check the device.
- Export Logs: Export the device operation logs.

5.10.6 Factory Reset

Reset all the device settings to defaults.

Menu	Description
Reset (Save IP)	Reset all the settings to defaults, but save the IP address.
Reset (All)	Reset all the settings to defaults.

5.10.7 Firmware Update

Update the device firmware by using a USB drive.

Precondition: The update program must be stored in the root directory of the USB drive.

- The system can automatically detect the update program in the USB drive and ask you whether to update the firmware.
- You can also go to Firmware Update > USB to update the firmware anytime you want.

5.10.8 About Us

View the device hardware version, company website (www.novastar.tech) and email address (support@novastar.tech).

5.11 Communication Settings

5.11.1 Communication Mode

Figure 5-36 Communication mode



The device is connected to the PC through USB port and Ethernet port. The options are **USB Preferred** and **LAN Preferred**.

- When USB Preferred is selected, the device prefers the communication through USB port.
- When LAN Preferred is selected, the device prefers the communication through Ethernet port.

5.11.2 Network Settings

The options are Manual and Auto.

- Manual: Set the device IP address, subnet mask and gateway manually.
- Auto: The device reads the network parameters automatically.
- Reset: Reset all the settings to defaults.

Figure 5-37 Network settin\gs

Network Settings			
Mode	Auto		
IP Address	192.168.0.10		
Subnet Mask	255.255.255.0		
Gateway	192.168.0.1		
Re	set		
Ap	ply		
Re Ap	iset		

Note:

- 1. When communicating with the control PC, the device and control PC must be on the same LAN.
- 2. The IP address of current device cannot conflict with IP addresses of other devices.
5.12 Langugage

The NovaPro UHD supports English and Chinese. You can freely switch to either language.

6 Built-in Platform Master VI

The NovaPro UHD has built in a smart control platform Master VI. The platform consists of four modules, including **Home**, **Screen**, **Layer** and **Settings**, which can help you easily perform screen and layer related configurations.



6.1 Home Page

Figure 6-2 Master VI home page



Area	Function	Description
	Home	Display all the connected devices and configured screens.
A	Screen	Configure the screens smartly, including adding cabinets and setting cabinet data flow.
	Layer	Configure the layers of different input sources.
	Settings	Provide the system related settings.
В	Screen	Display the sizes and names of the configured screens. Click a screen to enter the Screen page.
С	Device	Display the names and serial port numbers of the connected devices. Click a



Area	Function	Description
		device to enter the Layer page.
		Click (C) at the top right corner of the device area to synchronize the device data.
D	Ċ	Shut down the connected devices.
	A	Set the user permissions. Password is required for login. The default password is null.

6.2 Screen Configuration

Figure 6-3 Adding cabinets and setting cabinet connection type

^	🛐 Device 🛛 🗹 Est				 										
Home	Cabinet Management	ន ៧ ន ព	sbinet Connec	UT 🛸	Disco	🖌 🧿	ored Vi	ew Se	nd Savel	o HW					
Screen	Divice + +	Screen 1 × +												Color	Advanced
e Layer		60% •) ⊂ Q Q]	j 1:1 🖬		F							i	Manut. Type Device	Default Default(128x128)	
¢															
Settings			NC A	нс •					NC .				Mapping Position Position		
				ic ()					iuc ()				Test Pattern	×	101.100
			NC 9	HC					nc O				Program version	- 0	
			e e	HC					ыс ()						
			•	ис (Ф					NC ()						
			.e	•		•) (•	() ()	•	e	ļ,			

Area	Function	Description			
	Refresh	Refresh and read the hardware information again.			
	Hot Backup	Backup between the devices or backup between the Ethernet ports			
Device	Mapping	Display the receiving card numbers and Ethernet port information on the cabinets.			
	Brightness	Adjust the brightness of the LED screen.			
	Frame Rate	Set the output frame rate of the NovaPro UHD.			
	Cabinet Management	Add cabinets and set the cabinet sizes.			
	Cabinet Connection	Select the cabinet connection type.			
	Disconnect	Delete the lines between cabinets.			
Edit	Advanced	Set the cabinet display status in the editing area and the snapping mode.			
	View	Front view and rear view of the cabinets			
	Send	Send the display configuration file to the hardware devices.			
	Save to HW	Send and save the screen configuration files to the hardware devices.			

6.2.1 Adding Cabinets

- Step 1 Select the device type and Ethernet port type.
- Step 2 Go to Edit > Cabinet Management. Click the following icons to select the cabinet types.
 - Add the cabinets in batches.
 - 128x128: Add a single cabinet.
- Step 3 Select the cabinet and set the cabinet size.
- Step 4 Move the mouse to the editing area and click to add cabinets.

6.2.2 Cabinet Connection

- Step 1 Click to select the output Ethernet port on the left.
- Step 2 Drag to select the cabinets loaded by the Ethernet port.
- Step 3 Go to Edit > Cabinet Connection to select a connection type. 8 connection types are supported.
- Step 4 Click Send in the toolbar to send the screen configuration to the receiving card.

Note:

After the Ethernet port is selected, you can click the cabinets in turn according to the cabinet connection of LED screen to complete the whole connections.

Canvas Settings

Click the blank area on the canvas and select the Canvas tab to set the canvas-related properties.

Item	Description
Grid Color	Set the color of the canvas grid.
Grid Width	Set the width of the canvas grid (unit: pixel).
Grid Height	Set the height of the canvas grid (unit: pixel).
Screen Name	Name the screen currently configured.
Disable Edit	When selected, any operations to the canvas are prohibited.

Figure 6-4 Canvas settings



Screen Color Settings

Set the screen color related parameters. Click the Color tab to set the screen color.

- Customize the brightness, Gamma and color temperature.
- Enable 18-bit mode.
- Enable ClearView.
- Select the calibration type.
- Customize the color gamut.
- Enable PAL or NTSC.

Figure 6-5 Color properties

	Car	Ivas					
					400		
BU	gntness				128	₹ 50%	
	Gamma		•		2.4	÷	
		Set as	Defau	lts R	eset to I	Defaults	
Co	lor Te		•		6400	‡ К	
•	Custo	mize Colo	or Tem	perature			
	En	able 18-b	it Mod	e			
	En	able Clea	rView				
	Calibra	tion Type	Ä	b Y			
	Color Ga	mut Setti	ngs	Custom			
	Disat	le	PAL	NTS	с		



Figure 6-6 Color gamut



Save parameters

Table 6-1	Color	aamut	settina	descri	ptions
		90			~

Name		Description				
		Enable the editing function.				
)	Disable the editing function.				
	÷	Zoom in the editing area.				
Toolbar	Q	Zoom out the editing area.				
		Import the configuration files.				
		Export the current configuration as a configuration file.				
	Ċ	Reset the color settings.				
Editing area		Click and drag a point to set the target color gamut.				
		Disable the color gamut adjustment function.				
+		Save the current color gamut parameters.				
PAL/NTSC		Two standard broadcast formats				



Name	Description
Send	Send the color gamut parameters to receiving card and these settings will be lost after power off.
Save	Send and save the color gamut parameters to receiving card and these settings will not be lost after power off.

Device Properties

Click the target cabinet and go to the Properties tab to view the device properties.

- Connection: 2-1-1 denotes that the sending card number is 2, Ethernet port number is 1, and the receiving card number is 1.
- Mapping Position: Horizontal and vertical coordinates of the top left corner of the selected cabinet on the screen
- Position: Horizontal and vertical coordinates of the top left corner of the selected cabinet on the canvas
- Test Pattern: Test the display effect.
- Program Version: Refresh, download or update the program version of the receiving card.

- Each the firmware version of the receiving card, which is only applicable to single cabinet.

- Download the firmware program of the receiving card, which is only applicable to single cabinet.
- Update the firmware program of the receiving card, which is applicable to both single cabinet and multiple cabinets.

Figure 6-7 Device properties

► Properties	Color
Manuf.	Default
Туре	Default(128×128) (j
Device	NovaPro UHD-2
Port Name	Local@UHD
Connection	2-1-1 (j)
Mapping Position	X 0 🗘 Y 0 🗘
Position	X 691 🗢 Y 2302 🗢
Test Pattern	V
Program Version	Q ± ±

6.3 Layer Configuration

Add or delete the layers, OSD, LOGO and BKG, as well as set the layer properties and image quality. Layer provides three function modules:

• System: Connect, refresh and test the device.



- Settings: Set the input or output resolution and image quality, transition effect and duration, AUX and HDR.
- OSD: Enable or disable OSD, LOGO and BKG.

	🕂 System 🔘 Settings	四 0SD			
Home	Sync Self-Test				
Screen		୍ 🕆 🗇 📩 । ବ୍	ର୍ 🗋 🐍 ⊨ 🛠 🗖		
			PGM	SWAP	Layout Celor Advanced
Layer <					
~				0.5 s	
Settings			NovaPro UHD-1	••	X 400 2 Width 800 2
				🛓 TAKE	Y 163 2 Height 600 2
				🕅 сит	Mask
				27%	Top 0 2 Left 0 2
			PVW		
			L		
	HDMI2.0-10		SDI-02		
m A				27%	
U 🔒				27%	

Figure 6-8 Layer configuration

Area	Function	Description				
Quatam	Sync	Synchronize the configurations of the NovaPro UHD.				
System	Self-Test	Test the image display effect of the cabinet.				
	Input	Adjust the input resolution and input color.				
	Output	Adjust the output color.				
	System Mode	PGM Edit and Switcher modes are supported.				
		 PGM Edit: Edit the layers in the PGM area. 				
		 Switcher: Edit the layers in the PVW area, and then click TAKE or CUT to send PVW to PGM. 				
Settings	Sync Mode	Enable the sync mode and select the sync source.				
	AUX	Turn on or turn off the AUX function, and set the AUX source, switching, display mode and output frame rate.				
	HDR	Turn on or turn off the HDR function, and set the HDR related parameters.				
	MVR	Set the output frame rate for the MVR connector.				
	Preset	Perform the preset management, including adding, loading, clearing and copying.				
	OSD	Add an image or text on the LED screen.				
000	LOGO	Add an image on the LED screen as LOGO that has the highest priority.				
030	BKG	Add an image on the LED screen as BKG that has the lowest priority.				
	Color BKG	Add a pure color on the LED screen as BKG that has the lowest priority.				

Figure 6-9 Toolbar introduction



lcon	Description
£	Cancel the previous action.

lcon	Description
•	Restore the previous action.
÷	Lock LOGO, OSD and layers.
Ŧ	Clear the editing area.
÷	Zoom in the editing area.
Θ	Zoom out the editing area.
	Make the editing area auto fit the screen.
C.	Arrange all the layers, OSD and LOGO in PVW area by priorities. The 1 st layer starts from the top left corner (starting point), and every subsequent layer gets a 50-pixel offset both horizontally and vertically from its previous layer. The layers sizes are 800×600 by default.
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	Freeze the PGM and the Take function is disabled at this time.
	Make the screen go black and the Take function can be enabled. When this function is disabled, the screen can display the images after Take button is clicked.

Figure 6-10 Transition settings



Area	Description
SWAP	• When SWAP is selected, if you click TAKE or CUT , the layers in PVW and PGM are interchanged.
	• When SWAP is not selected, if you click TAKE or CUT , the layers in PVW are copied to PGM.
	Set the transition effect when sending PVW to PGM.
0.5 s	Set the transition effect duration by entering a value in the text box or clicking +/ The value ranges from 0.5s to 2.0s, and defaults to 0.5s .



Area	Description
Take	Send PVW to PGM with a transition effect.
Cut	Send PVW to PGM directly without a transition effect.

6.3.1 System

Sync

Click Sync to obtain all the device data, such as the layer data and preset data.

Self-Test

Test whether the currently-connected LED screen can display the images normally through the test pattern.

	Self-Test		x
Test Pattern	Full Red	~	
Drichterses	•		
Brightness	•	0	
Space	• • • • • •	0	
Speed	•	1	
		Close	

- Test Pattern: Select the image type to be displayed on the screen.
- Brightness: Set the brightness of the test pattern displayed on the LED screen.
- Space: Set the width of gradient color or the space between test lines. This parameter is configurable when the test pattern is not a pure color.
- Speed: Set the movement speed of the test lines. This parameter is configurable when the test pattern is lines.

Click **Close** to exit the self-test settings screen. When a test pattern is displayed on the LED screen, click **Self-Test** and select **Normal** on the self-test screen to close the test pattern.

6.3.2 Settings

Input

Set the input resolution and image quality of the input connector.

Input

Click Input to enter the input settings screen. The Input tab is selected by default.



Figure 6-11 Inpu	ıt			
	Input	Settings		×
Input	Color			
DVI Input Mod	e 😑 Single Link	Dual Link		
	60 Hz			
	1080			
		- 1920 —		
Sou	Irce DVI-05		~	
	Standard	Custom		
Resolu	tion 1920*1080		~	
Frame R	tate 60		~	Hz
		ОК	Cancel	Apply

- DVI Input Mode:

Single Link: 4 × Single link DVI connectors, each with up to 1920×1080@60Hz input resolution Dual Link: 2 × Dual link DVI connectors (2 & 4), each with up to 3840×1080@60Hz input resolution

Select an input connector from the drop-down list of Source.
 When Standard is selected, set the resolution and frame rate.
 When Custom is selected, set the width, height and frame rate.

- Color
- Step 1 Click the **Color** tab to set the input image quality.

Figure 6-12	Input color
-------------	-------------

	Input Settings	×
Input Co		
Source	SDI-01 Y	
Brightness ■		*
Contrast ■	50	.≜ ∀
Hue •	0	× ¥
Saturation •		*
Gamma 🛛	1.00	* ¥
	Reset	
	OK Cancel	Apply

Select an input connector from the drop-down list of **Source**. Adjust the brightness, contrast, hue, saturation and Gamma.

Step 2 Click Apply to send the parameters to the devices.

Step 3 Click **OK** to complete the input settings.

Output

Set the output image quality.

Under the Color tab, you can adjust the brightness, contrast, hue, saturation and Gamma.

Figure 0-13 Output		
	Output Settings	x
Color		
Brightness	 50 ÷	
Contrast	 50 ‡	
Hue	0 ÷	
Saturation	50 :	
Gamma	1.00 🗧	
	Reset	
	OK Cancel Apply)

Figure 6-13 Output color

AUX

The NovaPro UHD supports one AUX. You can output any input source, PVW or PGM to a specified display device through the AUX connector.

- Select **Enable** to enable the AUX function. When selected, the following functions will be available.
- Follow Preset: Set whether the AUX follows the preset during switching.
 - Selected: If the preset has AUX data, the AUX input source will be switched during preset switching.
 - Deselected: The AUX input source will not be switched during preset switching.
- AUX: Select a desired AUX signal source from the drop-down list.
- AUX Scaling: Set the AUX display mode.
 - Full Screen: Make the image display in full screen.
 - Proportional: Scale the image proportionally and then display it on the screen.
- Frame Rate: Set the frame rate for the AUX connector.

	AUX		x
Enable Follow Pres	et		
AUX	SDI-01	~	
AUX Scaling	Full Screen	Proportional	
Frame Rate	60	~	Hz
		Close	$\mathbf{)}$

HDR

HDR function can greatly enhance the display image quality, allowing for a more clear and vivid image when the device is used together with NovaStar A8s/A10s Plus receiving cards.

HDR	x
Enable	
Peak Screen Brightness 💶 1000 🛟	
Ambient Brightness	
Low Grayscale Mode 🗾 🛑 15 🛟	
Reset	
Current HDR function of the device only supports HDR10 input sour	ce.
CI	ose

Select Enable to enable the HDR function. The HDR parameters are described as followings.

Menu Item	Description
Peak Screen Brightness	Adjust the screen brightness under normal operation. The value ranges from 100 to 1000, and defautls to 1000 .
Ambient Brightness	Display the ambient brightness. The value ranges from 0 to 200, and defautls to 30 .
Low Grayscale Mode	Adjust the grayscale value of the image displayed on the LED screen. The value ranges from 0 to 50, and defautIs to 15 .

MVR

Set the frame rate for the AUX connector.

6.3.3 OSD

On the Layer screen, OSD, LOGO and BKG files can be added to the software for easy and direct use in future.

OSD

At most 8 OSD files can be added. You can select image or text as the OSD.

- Adding OSD files
 - a. Click + in the **OSD** area to pop up the OSD adding window.
 - Select Image to add a local image as OSD.
 - Select Text to set the font, size and other properties of the text.

Figure 6-14 Adding OSD images

Figure 6-15 Adding OSD texts



- b. Click 🛨 to add a new OSD file.
- c. Click Apply to save the newly-added OSD files to the software library.



Note:

The OSD text is read from Master VI and cannot be edited.

- Applying OSD files
 - a. Select a desired OSD file and click the file to add it to PVW.
 - b. In the **PVW** area, click to select an OSD file. Then go to the property setting area on the right to configure the related parameters of the OSD file. The detailed parameter descriptions are shown in Table 6-3.

Parameter	Description	Description					
Х	Set the horizontal position of the OSD file.	You can also simply use the mouse to drag the					
Y	Set the vertical position of the OSD file.	OSD file to the desired position.					
Width	Set the width of the OSD file.	There are three ways to change the OSD file size: 1. Drag the edge of the OSD file.					
Height	Set the height of the OSD file.	 Drag the slider of Width or Height. Enter a width or height number. 					
Speed	Set the moving speed of the OSD text.	Drag the slider or enter a value directly to set the speed. The value ranges from 0 to 3. 0: Not moving 3: Moving at the fastest speed					
Direction	Set the moving direction of the OSD text.Right to Left: The text moves from the right to left.From Left to Right: The text moves from the left to right.	Radio button					
Opacity	Set the opacity of the OSD file.	 100%: Nontransparent 0%: Transparent					

Table 6-3 OSD parameter descriptions

LOGO

At most 16 LOGO files can be added.

- Adding LOGO files
 - a. Click + in LOGO area to enter the LOGO settings page.
 - b. Click **Image** to add local files as the LOGO files.
 - c. Click 🛨 to add a new LOGO file.
 - d. Click Apply to save the newly-added LOGO files to the software library.
- Applying LOGO files
 - a. Select a desired LOGO file and click the file to add it to PVW.
 - b. In the PVW area, click to select an LOGO file. Then go to the property setting area on the right to configure the related parameters of the LOGO file. The detailed parameter descriptions are shown in Table 6-4.

Parameter	Description	Description
Х	Set the horizontal position of the LOGO file.	You can also simply use the mouse to drag
Υ	Set the vertical position of the LOGO file.	the LOGO file to the desired position.
Width	-	The width and height cannot be adjusted.

Table 6-4 LOGO parameter descriptions



Parameter	Description	Description
Height	-	
Opacity	Set the opacity of the LOGO file.	100%: Nontransparent0%: Transparent

BKG

At most 16 BKG files can be added.

- Adding BKG files
 - a. Click + in BKG area to enter the BKG settings page.
 - b. Click Image or Capture to add local files or capture an input source image as the BKG files.
 - c. Click **t** to add a new BKG file.
 - d. Click Apply to save the newly-added BKG files to the software library.
- Applying BKG files

Select the desired BKG file and click the file to add it to PVW.

6.3.4 Adding Layers

Step 1 Click to select a signal source on the left.

Right click the edit icon on the right of the signal source to rename the signal source.

Step 2 In the video editing area, click and drag the mouse to create a custom-sized layer.

You can also select a signal source and drag it to the video editing area, and then release the mouse to create a layer.

- When you move the mouse to any edge of the layer and a double-headed arrow appears, you can click and drag the layer edge to adjust the layer size.
- When you move the mouse to the layer area, you can click and drag the layer to change its position.
- When a single layer is selected, you can press the arrow buttons to fine tune the layer position, while hold down the **Shift** key and press the arrow buttons to fine tune the layer size.
- When you move the mouse to the layer top, five buttons appear in the top right corner of the layer. The detailed button functions are shown in Table 6-5.

Table 6-5 Layer buttons

lcon	Description
	Make the layer fill the screen loaded by the current connector.
	Make the layer fill the whole output screen.
X	Close the layer.
	Enable the pixel-to-pixel display mode.
·	Unlock the layer.
•	Lock the layer.

You can right click the layer to perform the following operations:

- Switch Source: Change the signal source of the layer.
- Bring to Front: Bring the layer to the front.
- Send to Back: Send the layer to the back.

- Bring Forward/Send Backward: Move the layer forward or backward.
- Lock Layer/Unlock Layer: Lock or unlock the layer.
- Close Current Layer: Close the selected layer.
- Close All Layers: Close all the layers.

Setting layer properties

Configure the layer properties in the property setting area on the right where you can configure the layer layout, color and other advanced properties.

Layout

Parameter	Description						
Aspect Ratio							
Aspect Ratio	Set the proportional relationship between the layer width and height. After the layer size is adjusted manually, if the aspect ratio does not match any of the listed ratios, the aspect ratio will be the actual aspect ratio of the layer.						
Layer							
Х	Set the horizontal initial position of the layer.						
Υ	Set the vertical initial position of the layer.						
Width	Set the layer's width. After you click and neight and Height , the width and height will be increased or decreased at the ratio of 1:1. After the height reaches the maximum value, only the width can be changed.						
Height	Set the layer height.						
Mask							
Тор	Mask the layer from top to bottom.						
Bottom	Mask the layer from bottom to top.						
Left	Mask the layer from left to right.						
Right	Mask the layer from right to left.						
Сгор							
Х	Set the horizontal initial position for the input source cropping.						
Y	Set the vertical initial position for the input source cropping.						
Width	Set the width of the output after cropping.						
Height	Set the height of the output after cropping.						

Color

Parameter	Description
Brightness	Adjust the brightness of the output image. The value ranges from 0 to 100.
Contrast	Adjust the contrast of the output image. The value ranges from 0 to 100.
Hue	Adjust the gradation or variety of the output image. The value ranges from –180 to +180.
Saturation	Adjust the purity or vividness grade of the output image. The value ranges from 0 to 100.
Opacity	Adjust the opacity of the output image.
Monochrome	Set the layer image to gray scale image.
Invert Colors	Invert the color to its complementary color that combined with the original color makes white (RGB: 255,255,255).



Parameter	Description
	For example, if the original color is red (RGB: 255,0,0), the inverted color is cyan (RGB: 0, 255, 255).

Advanced

Under the **Advanced** tab, you can set the layer shape, layer flipping and copying.

- Shaped: Select a layer shape from the drop-down list.
- Flip:
 - \geq Select Horizontally to flip the output image horizontally.
 - \geq Select Vertically to flip the output image vertically.
 - \geqslant Select both Horizontally and Vertically to flip the image both horizontally and vertically
- Copy: Add a new layer according to the copy mode you select.
 - None: Do not copy the layer. \geq
 - Clone: Add a new layer which is the same as the original one. The two layers are symmetric \triangleright horizontally by default.
 - Left Mirror: Add a mirrored layer on the left of the original layer. The two layers display mirrored \geq images.
 - Right Mirror: Add a mirrored layer on the right of the original layer. The two layers display mirrored \triangleright images.
 - X: Set the horizontal initial coordinate of the new layer.

6.3.5 Preset Settings

Up to 16 presets are supported. The preset will be saved in the system automatically after you have completed a preset settings, which is easier for future use.

A preset not only contains layer data, but also saved BKG, LOGO or OSD data.

- Step 1 After the layer settings, click **Preset** to enter the preset page.
- Step 2 Right click the desired preset.
- Step 3 Select Save to save the layer data to the preset.

The preset with no data saved



The preset being edited currently

The preset loaded currently

- Select a saved preset, and click Load to load the preset to PVW.
- Select a saved preset, and click Clear to clear the preset data.
- Click Clear All to clear all the presets.

Note:

Double click a preset to rename it. Only the saved preset can be renamed. If you hover on a preset icon, the preset name is displayed.



6.3.6 Image Mosaic

When you need to drive a large screen which exceeds the loading capacity of a single NovaPro UHD unit, the image mosaic function offers you a good choice. You can link two or more device units to meet your requirements.

The following figure illustrates the image mosaic function with two NovaPro UHD units.



- Step 1 After all the required device units are connected, Master VI will connect all the units automatically.
- Step 2 Click the Device tab on the left of the Layer page to show the device list.
- Step 3 Click a device and drag it to a desired device for image mosaic. After the action, a mosaic group is formed as shown in Figure 6-17. The mosaic group will be named automatically by the system.
 - Click I next to the mosaic group name to rename the group.
 - Click I next to the device name to remove the device from the group.



Step 4 In the PVW area, click and drag NovaPro UHD-1 or NovaPro UHD-2 to change the mosaic layout.

Step 5 Click the **Source** tab on the left to shown the signal sources.

- Green: The same connectors on all the devices in the mosaic group are accessed with an input source.
- White: No input source is connected to the connectors, or one or more device connectors in the mosaic group are not accessed with input sources.
- Step 6 Click and drag an input source signal on the left to the PVW area to add a layer.

Note:

When the layer locates within one device area and does not cross any more devices, the layer occupies the layer resources of the current device.

When the layer crosses multiple devices, the layer occupies the layer resources of all devices it crosses.

After a layer is added, the device mosaic layout cannot be changed. If you need to change the mosaic output, please delete the layer first.

6.4 Settings



- Firmware Update: Update the firmware through a USB drive. Click to select the upgrade file.
- Factory Reset: When multiple device units are linked, select the device to be reset from the drop-down list
 and reset all its parameters to defaults.
 - Save IP: Reset the device parameters to factory settings, but save the device IP address.
 - Reset all: Reset all the device parameters to factory settings.
- Network Settings: Select DHCP or Static and set the device IP address, subnet mask and gateway of the device.
- Diagnostics: Diagnose the device when the device fails and send the result to the technical support of NovaStar to solve the problems as soon as possible.
- Date and Time: Set the device date and time.
- Administrator: Set or change the user password.

7 Web Operations

7.1 Overview

The NovaPro UHD allows for the controlling on a PC. You can set the device related parameters through a web browser. The settings are the same as that of the device front panel.

- The supported web browsers include:
- Chrome 76 or later version
- Safari 10 or later version

Note:

When you use a PC to control the device, the device front panel buttons are locked and a lock icon appears on the front panel screen.

7.1.1 Device Connection

Hardware connections for device control on a PC are as follows.

• Direct connection

Connect the Ethernet port of the PC to the Ethernet port of the device with an Ethernet cable.



Using a router

Connect the Ethernet ports of the device and PC to the LAN ports of the router.



7.1.2 Web Page Login

- Step 1 Open the suggested web browser on your computer, and enter "http://the device IP address" into the address bar.
- Step 2 Press Enter and the browser will jump to the login interface of the Web page.
- Step 3 Enter the login password.

Note:

The default password is "888888888". You can go to **Settings > Change Password** to change the password after login.

Step 4 Click Login to log in to the Web page.

7.1.3 Web UI Introduction

NOVASTAR (Howers UND)												i đ	a Progra	mming	۵	Preset	0	Settings									About	English					
0.	0	0.2	0 N+12	0.1	0	0.1	0	0.11	0	0.2	0.1	0.1	0	0,11		0.2	0	0 811	0 P4110	0.1		0.0	0	0.00	e 8113	0.2	O . 2111	0.0	0		Screen E	irightness	
0	0	O RIFE	0 8112	0 8:11	0	0	0	O Rota	0 8213	O Rote	O Rela	0 R117	O Rest	0 8113	0	0	0 8113	0 Pot 10	0 R0145	0 Pj 11	O Rotti	O Rotig	0 81112	0 A) (11)	0 85113	O Pot N	0 P0114	O Asest	O Ports				
0	0	0 8112	0	0	0 8:11	0	0	O Renti	0 9111	0	O Prist	0	0 8017	0 2015	0	0	0 8115	0 8115	O Ret G	0 8000	0	O Rett	O R110	O Atria	O Patti	O Rettis	0 R0114	O Positi	O		Screen C	Configuration	
0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	O Post	0	0	O	0	O RetT	0	0	0	C Pits	0	O Retto	0	0	0	0	0	0 81113	0	0	O Ref. 10	O				
0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	C	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		Row	s 15	
•	0	0	0	•	0	•	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	•	0	0	0	0	0		Port 1 C	abinet Oty	
	0	0	0	•	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0				
	A+++	0	R112	6 ml 3	8:13	814	0	Pres O	P(1)	R 11	R118	R111	8917	Res O	0	810	A:10	Retti	Per10	Alerti C	8111	8112	RITU O	Rett	Anta O	Retu	Annu O	Picti	Aut II		Cabinet	Connection	
-	2111	812	2012	-	811	814	Reta	Pent	2015	211	811	Ref	Rent	Reta	211	2013	Reti	2015	Petit	Rotti	Retti	Press	Rett	Pre-13	RIII	Retu	Ports	Prent	Rent				
-	0 211	0 8152	D 2013	2:13	0 811	0	ner .	Posts	2011	211	Pett	RAT	RetT	0,11	D Pres	2113	0 2113	2410	P0110	Pre 11	2011	RA12	Press	Piers	P1113	20114	Parts	Poets	Petit				t dt
0	0	0	0 8112	0 8.13	0	0.11	0	O Refs	0	O Res	0.1	0.1	0 8947	O Rest	0	0	0	0 R1112	0 84150	O Real	0	0	0 8110	O Rieto	0 8110	ORIN	C Polis	O Rote 10	O Ret 18		Мар	png	
0 810	0	O Res	0	0	0 811	0.1	0	0 R015	0	O Rice	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	O Ritig	0 80110	0 R.111	0 50111	0	O Recu	0 81810	0 8415	O Rotta	C PD114	O Rotat	O Rotte		LED Scr	een Color	Reset
0 800	0 8111	O Ret2	0 8112	0	O. Retti	0	0	O Ret I	O Pett	0	0	0 8117	O Rest?	0 8:15	0	0	C) Petts	0 Act 10	O Retes	0	0 8111	0 8:11	O 81112	0 81113	O Potti	O Rottie	O Ppt 14	O Rects	O Fotal		Gamma		
0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	O Pertő	O	0	0	0	O RetT	0	0	0	C.	0	O Petto	0	0	0	O Recto	O Prett	0 R1113	0	0	O Rost 15	0		Color Te	mperature	
•	•	0	0	0	0	0	e	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		B	245	
e	•	c	0	0-	-	c	-0	c	0	c	•	c	•	c	•	e	0	c	0	c	•	c	0	e	•	c	•	c	0			249	
	4011	1012	2012	-	2011	2014	#2E4	P02.1	Parts	Pold 1	NUL	ANT	Rati	A913	ALL	4913	1013	ALC	Mart 10	FRITT	ADE IN	ASIIG	ADRIG	ARIC	AGE G	PUTTA	POLIN	ASC 15	And	۲			
																														Q 100%			
Screen 3	mun 3047 1520 girline											Q		Save to RV	ard																		

- Configuration: Set the LED screen loaded by the NovaPro UHD. The settings include LED screen brightness, quick configuration, advanced configuration, mapping, cabinet configuration file applying and LED screen color.
- Programming: Perform the layer and layer-related properties settings, BKG management, preset saving and loading, black out and freeze of the screen.
- Preset: Load, copy and paste, rename, import and export the presets.
- Settings: Set the output, AUX, test pattern, synchronization, system mode, network, HDR, low latency, firmware update, date and time, as well as factory reset.
- Refresh and synchronize the device configuration information.
- Language: Change the UI language. English and Chinese are supported.
- Exit: Log out of the Web page.

7.2 Screen Configuration

7.2.1 Screen Brightness

- Step 1 Click Configuration to enter the screen configuration page.
- Step 2 In the text box below Screen Brightness, enter a brightness value directly.

The brightness value will be sent to the device in real time, and the LED brightness will be changed accordingly.

You can also click + or - to fine tune the value.

Figure 7-1 Screen brightness adjustment

Screen Brightne	SS	
10		+

0: The lowest brightness (the screen is black)100: The highest brightness

7.2.2 Screen Configuration

7.2.2.1 Quick Configuration

Prerequisites

- LED screen must be a regular screen.
- Cabinets of the screen must be regular cabinets with the same resolution.
- The following data flow settings are supported. During data flow settings, you must ensure that the physical connection of each port is along the same direction and downward to next one.

					Ł		
--	--	--	--	--	---	--	--

- During data flow settings, you must ensure that the Ethernet Port 1 is at the beginning position of the whole physical connection.
- The quantity of cabinets loaded by each Ethernet port must meet the following requirement: Ethernet port
 1 ≥ Ethernet port 2 ≥ Ethernet port 3 ≥ Ethernet port 4 ≥ ... ≥ Ethernet port 16
- The quantity of cabinets loaded by each Ethernet port must be an integer multiple of the screen cabinet row quantity or column quantity.



Operating Procedure

- Step 1 Click **Configuration** to enter the screen configuration page.
- Step 2 In the Screen Configuration area, select Quick.

Figure 7-2 Quick configuration

Screen Configuration									
🔴 Quick 💿 Advanced									
Rows	15		- +						
Columns	30		- +						
Port 1 Cat	oinet Qty								
38			- +						
Cabinet C	onnectio	n							
2	H	55	뢥						
\$5	랍	2	뫕						
Mapping									

- Step 3 Fill the numbers in the **Rows** and **Columns** text boxes according to the actual row and column quantities of the cabinets of the LED screen.
- Step 4 Fill the number in the **Port 1 Cabinet Qty** text box to set the quantity of the cabinets loaded by Ethernet port 1.
- Step 5 Select an appropriate physical connection mode of the cabinets in the Cabinet Connection area.

When a cabinet connection is selected, you can view the real-time effect on LED screen. If all the cabinets of the screen display normally, that is, no overlapping or repeated images, the cabinet connection is correct.

Note:

Select **Mapping** to show the relation between each cabinet of the LED screen and the sending device for easier cabinet connection.

7.2.2.2 Advanced Configuration

You can set the quantities of the rows and columns of the cabinets loaded by each Ethernet port, the cabinet connection, as well as the offset of the area loaded by each Ethernet port, so as to complete the whole LED screen configuration.

- Step 1 Click Configuration to enter the screen configuration page.
- Step 2 In the Screen Configuration area, select Advanced.

Figure 7-3 Advanced configuration

Screen Configuration				
🔵 Quick 🥚 Advanced				
Port Port 1				
RV Card Qty				
Rows 8 - +				
Columns 5 - +				
Offset Coordinates				
X 0 - + px				
Y 0 - + px				
Cabinet Connection				
🔁 स 🤹 स				
5 답 관 답				
Apply Reset				

- Step 3 Select an Ethernet port from the drop-down list next to Port.
- Step 4 Fill the numbers in the **Rows** and **Columns** text boxes to set the quantities of the rows and columns of the cabinets loaded by the selected Ethernet port.
- Step 5 Fill the numbers in the X and Y text boxes to set the starting position of the cabinets loaded by the selected Ethernet port, that is, the offset of these cabinets. The offset adjustment reference is the top-left corner of these cabinets.
- Step 6 Select an appropriate physical connection mode of the cabinets loaded by the selected Ethernet port in the **Cabinet Connection** area.

When a cabinet connection is selected, you can view the real-time effect on LED screen. If all the cabinets of the screen display normally, that is, no overlapping or repeated images, the cabinet connection is correct.

Note:

Select **Mapping** to show the relation between each cabinet of the LED screen and the sending device for easier cabinet connection.

- Step 7 Repeat Step 3 to Step 6 to do the same for other Ethernet ports to complete the whole LED screen configuration.
- Step 8 Click Apply to make the settings take effect.



Click Reset to clear all the settings.

7.2.3 LED Screen Color

Gamma

Set the Gamma value to adjust the output image quality.

Figure 7-4 LED screen color adjustment

LED Screer	ı Color	Re	set
Gamma	2.8		+

The Gamma value ranges from 1.0 to 4.0, and defaults to 2.8.

Color Temperature

Set the image color to **Standard**, **Cool**, **Warm** and **Custom**. Custom allows you to adjust the individual R, G and B values.

Figure 7-5 Color temperature

Col	lor Temperature	
	Standard	~
R	255	
G	249	-+
в	253	-+

7.2.4 Save to RV Card

After you completed all the preceding settings, click **Save to RV Card** to save the screen configuration data to the receiving card. You can use those data directly next time, rather than send it to the receiving card again.



7.3 Programming

Click **Programming** to enter the programming page where you can add, delete and edit layers, BKG, OSD and LOGO files.







No.	Description
1	All the function tabs
2	Shortcut keys
	• 🗊 / 🙃: Lock or unlock all the layers, BKG, OSD and LOGO files in the editing area.
	• Locar all the added layers, BKG, OSD and LOGO files in the editing area.
	• D: Restore the selected layer or all the layers to default size, that is, 800×600.
	- Restore all layers
	The layer with the lowest priority starts from the top left corner (starting point), and every subsequent layer gets a 50-pixel offset both horizontally and vertically from its previous layer.
	 Restore the selected layer
	Restore the selected layer to the top left corner.
	• C: The snap function is enabled by default.
	This function makes the layer snap to another layer edge or screen edge when it moves close to another layer or the screen.
	• Save Preset: Save the current layer layout and settings to a target preset for future use.
	Load Preset: Load a saved preset to the LED screen.
	PGM Edit: Enable or disable the PGM editing function.
	Black: Make the output image go black.
	Freeze: Freeze the current frame of the output image.
3	Input source list and BKG/OSD/LOGO list
	Input source status descriptions:
	Highlighted: The input source is accessed and normal.
	Not highlighted: The input source is not accessed or abnormal.
4	PVW area

No.	Description
5	Set the transition-related settings.
	• SWAP: When selected, click TAKE or CUT to interchange the PVW and PGM display. When deselected, the PVW and PGM displays are the same.
	Cut: Set the PVW to PGM transition effect.
	• $-$ + : Set the transition duration. Enter a value directly in the text box or click +/- to adjust the value. The value ranges from 0.5s to 2.0s and defaults to 0.5s.
	TAKE: Send the PVW to PGM with a transition effect.
	CUT: Send the PVW to PGM without a transition effect.
	• Editing Area: Set the layout for the PVW and PGM area. The supported layouts are
6	PGM area
7	Properties setting area
	Set the layer properties, input crop and other items if needed.
8	Zoom options in the editing area
	• 🕀: Restore the editing area to original view after the area is zoomed out or in.
	• 🔁: Zoom in the editing area.
	• 🔍: Zoom out the editing area.

7.3.1 Input Settings

The DP and HDMI connectors support custom and standard resolution settings. Here, we use HDMI connector as an example to illustrate the input settings.

- Step 1 Hover the mouse over the desired input connector and an icon 🍄 appears on the right of the input source name.
- Step 2 Click 🗘 to enter the input settings page.

Fiaure 7	7-7	nput	settinas
----------	-----	------	----------

Input Source	Gallery		Input Settings		x
		Input Resolution			
In SDI-2 No Signal			Standard Custom		
A SDI-3		Resolution	1920x1080		
No Signal		Frame Rate	60		Hz
SDI-4 No Signal			Apply		
HDMI-5 No Signal		Color Settings			
HDMI-6 No Signal		Brightness	50		
HDMI-7 No Signal		Hue	0	- +	
HDMI-8 No Signal		Saturation	50		
DP1.2-9 No Signal		Gamma	1.00 Reset		
4444444	15555555				
No Signal		Limited to Full	✓ Enable		
		HDCP Ena	able		

Step 3 Set the input resolution.

The DP and HDMI connectors support custom and standard resolution settings.

- Standard resolution
 - a. Select Standard.

Figure 7-8 Standard resolution

Input Resolution			
	lender Standard Custom		
Resolution	1920x1080	~	
Frame Rate	60	~	Hz
	Apply		

- b. Select an input resolution from the drop-down list next to Resolution.
- c. Select a frame rate from the drop-down list next to Frame Rate.
- d. Click Apply to complete the standard resolution settings.
- Custom resolution
 - a. Select Custom.

Figure 7-9 Custom resolution

Input Resolution			
	🔵 Standard 🛛 😑 Custom		
Width	1920	+	
Height	1080	+	
Frame Rate	03	~	H7
Trane Nate			112
	Apply		

- b. Enter a value in the Width text box.
- c. Enter a value in the Height text box.
- d. Select a frame rate from the drop-down list next to Frame Rate.
- e. Click Apply to complete the custom resolution settings.
- Step 4 Enable or disable the color range converting function for the input source.

The color range (RGB) of the input source is full by default. If the input source color range is RGB Limited, select **Enable** and the device will convert the color range to RGB Full.

Step 5 Enable or disable the HDCP function.

When the HDMI input source is HDCP-encrypted, select Enable; otherwise, deselect Enable.

Note:

Only HDMI connector supports HDCP settings.

7.3.2 Adding Layers

- Step 1 Select a desired input source from the Input Source list.
- Step 2 Click the editing area and drag the mouse to create a custom-sized layer.

You can also select an input source and drag it to the editing area, and then release the mouse to create a layer. The layer input source is the source you selected previously.

Figure 7-10 Adding layers

Layer 1	
HDMI2.0	-

Table 7-2 Layer icon descriptions

lcon	Name	Description
-	Unlock layer	When the layer is locked, click this icon to unlock the layer.
Ţ	Lock layer	Click this icon to lock the layer.
R	Pixel to pixel	In pixel to pixel mode, the layer size is the same as the current input image resolution.
يد]	Close pixel to pixel	Click this icon to exit the pixel to pixel mode and display the input source in its orignal size.
23	Full screen	Click this icon to make the current layer display in full screen.
NK NK	Close full screen	Click this icon to exit the full screen mode and restore the current layer to its original size.
\times	Close layer	Click this icon to close the current layer.

Click any of the small white squares on the layer edges and drag the square to adjust the layer size. Right click the layer and you can perform the following operations as required.

Figure 7-11 Layer operations

Layer 1	Switch Source	✔ ■ SDI-1	
	Bring to Front	SDI-2	
	Send to Back	SDI-3	
	Bring Forward	SDI-4	
	Send Backward	HDMI-5	
	Lock	HDMI-6	
	Pixel to Pixel	HDMI-7	
	Full Screen	HDMI-8	
	Close Current Layer	DP1.2-9	
	Close All Layers	444444455555555	

- Switch Source: Switch the input source for the current layer.
- Bring to Front/Send to Back: Bring the selected layer to front, or send the selected layer to back.
- Bring Forward/Send Backward: Move the layer up or down to adjust the layer priority.
- Pixel to Pixel: In pixel to pixel mode, the layer size is the same as the current input image resolution. Layer scaling is disabled in this mode.
- Full Screen: Make the layer display in full screen.
- Close Current Layer: Close the selected layer.
- Close All Layers: Close all the layers in the editing area.

7.3.2.1 Layer properties

After a layer is added, the **Properties** pane on the right is available when you click the layer.

		Setting layer properties					
		Prop	erties				
Aspect Ratio		427:281			~		
Positi	on and §	Size					
x	455			+	px		
Y	448			+	рх		
w	854			+	рх	a	
н	562			+	рх	บ	

Figure 7-12 Setting layer properties

• Aspect Ratio: Adjust and show the proportional relationship between the layer width and its height. Select a desired aspect ratio from the drop-down list next to Aspect Ratio.

If the layer the width remains the same during the adjusting process, the height will be changed based on the set aspect ratio.

When you manually adjust the layer size in the editing area, the **Aspect Ratio** area displays the actual layer aspect ratio.

- Position and Size: Adjust the layer position and size on the screen.
 - X: Set the horizontal coordinate of the layer top-left corner on the screen.
 - Y: Set the vertical coordinate of the layer top-left corner on the screen.
 - W: Set the layer width.



- H: Set the layer height.

Note:

Click click click the layer aspect ratio. The icon changes to click when the ratio is locked. If you change the layer width or height at this time, the other parameter changes accordingly based on the locked aspect ratio.

7.3.2.2 Input Crop

If you want to view a certain area of the input source image, crop the input source image and make the desired part display in full screen.

Select Input Crop to turn on the function. If no signal is detected, the function is unavailable.

Figure 7-13 Input crop

Input Crop								
x	0			рх				
Y	0			рх				
w	3840			рх				
н	2160			рх				
		R	eset					

• X: Set the horizontal initial position for the input source cropping. The value ranges from 0 to the horizontal width of the input source, and defaults to **0**.

- Y: Set the vertical initial position for the input source cropping. The value ranges from 0 to the vertical height of the input source, and defaults to **0**.
- W: The horizontal width of the current input source. If no signal is detected, it defaults to 1920.
- H: The vertical height of the current input source. If no signal is detected, it defaults to 1080.

The effect is shown as follows after the cropping.



Input Source: 1920×1080@60Hz



Layer Size: 1920×1080



7.3.3 BKG

7.3.3.1 Adding BKG

Add BKG images to the Web page and send those images to the NovaPro UHD. The NovaPro UHD supports BKG images and pure color BKG.

BKG Images

Step 1 On the Programming page, click the Gallery tab on the left and select BKG show the BKG list.



- Step 2 Click Image to pop up a window where you can select a BKG image.
- Step 3 Select a desired local image, and then click **Open** to pop up the BKG settings window.

If you want to capture an input source image, click **Capture** and click **O** next to the input source name in the input source list that appears.





• Crop: Crop the imported BKG image and use the cropped image as the BKG.

The highlighted area is the area to be kept. Click and drag the area to change its position, and drag its edge to change its size.

After the settings, click 💙 at the bottom-right corner of the area to cancel the selection, or click 💙 to confirm the settings.


- Initial X: Set the horizontal initial coordinate of the top-left corner of the cropped area on the original image.
- Initial Y: Set the vertical initial coordinate of the top-left corner of the cropped area on the original image.
- Width: Set the width of the cropped image.
- Height: Set the height of the cropped image.
- Scale: Scale the imported image.



- Keep aspect ratio: After this item is selected, when you adjust the width or height, the system will automatically calculate the height or width based on the set aspect ratio.
- Width: The BKG image width after scaling
- Height: The BKG image height after scaling
- Replace: Select a new BKG image and replace the current one.
- Capture: Capture the current frame of the selected input source and use the captured image as the BKG image.

Step 4 Click Apply to save the edited BKG image to BKG list and send the BKG image to the NovaPro UHD.

Pure Color BKG

Move the cursor to a pure color in the BKG list and click the arrow icon that appears, and then select a color from the displayed dialog box.

Click More Colors to customize a color.

Figure 7-17 6 Input Source [c] • + Capture Image #0000ff Default Color Theme Colors Standard Colors More Colors...

Pure Color BKG

7.3.3.2 BKG Operations

Loading BKG

Click a BKG in the BKG list to load the BKG image to the editing area. The BKG is always located at the bottom and displayed in full screen. The BKG priority and size cannot be adjusted.

Click at the top-right corner of the BKG to delete it.

BKG Operations

BKG list operations •

Hover the mouse over the BKG list to show the BKG operation menu.



Deleting BKG _

Click mext to a BKG and select **OK** in the displayed dialog box to delete the selected BKG.

Editing BKG -

Click Revealed to a BKG to pop up the BKG settings window to re-edit or replace the current BKG.



• BKG operations in PVW area

After a BKG is added to the PVW area, you can lock, unlock or read back the BKG.

- Locking or unlocking BKG

Right click the BKG and select **Lock** in the context menu to lock the BKG. After locked, the BKG cannot be deleted.

After locked, right click the BKG and select **Unlock** in the context men to unlock the BKG. After unlocked, the BKG can be deleted.

Reading back BKG

When you refresh the Web page or log in to the system again, the PVW area does not display the BKG image. Right click the BKG and select **Read Back** to display the BKG in the PVW and PGM area.

7.3.4 OSD

7.3.4.1 Adding OSD

Add OSD files to the Web page and send those images to the NovaPro UHD. The NovaPro UHD supports OSD images and OSD texts.

OSD Images

Step 1 On the Programming page, click OSD on the left to show the OSD list.



Figure 7-18 OSD list

- Step 2 Click Image to pop up a window where you can select an OSD image.
- Step 3 Select a desired local image, and then click **Open** to pop up the OSD settings window.





• Crop: Crop the imported OSD image and use the cropped image as the OSD.

The highlighted area is the area to be kept. Click and drag the area to change its position, and drag its edge to change its size.

After the settings, click \bigotimes at the bottom-right corner of the area to cancel the selection, or click \bigotimes to confirm the settings.





- Initial X: Set the horizontal initial coordinate of the top-left corner of the cropped area on the original image.
- Initial Y: Set the vertical initial coordinate of the top-left corner of the cropped area on the original image.
- Width: Set the width of the cropped image.
- Height: Set the height of the cropped image.
- Scale: Scale the imported image.



- Keep aspect ratio: After this item is selected, when you adjust the width or height, the system will
 automatically calculate the height or width based on the set aspect ratio.
- Width: The OSD image width after scaling
- Height: The OSD image height after scaling
- Replace: Select a new OSD image and replace the current one.
- Step 4 Click Apply to save the edited OSD image to OSD list and send the OSD image to the NovaPro UHD.

OSD Text

Click Text to pop up a window where you can set the OSD text properties.

Figure 7-2		NCD toxt
rigule /-2	0 0	



7.3.4.2 OSD Operations

Loading OSD

Click an OSD in the OSD list to load the OSD image to the editing area. The OSD priority and size can be adjusted.

Click at the top-right corner of the OSD to delete it.

OSD Operations

BKG list operations

Hover the mouse over the OSD list to show the OSD operation menu.



- Deleting OSD

Click $\widehat{\mathbf{m}}$ next to an OSD and select **OK** in the displayed dialog box to delete the selected OSD.

Editing OSD

Click I next to an OSD to pop up the OSD settings window to re-edit or replace the current OSD.

OSD operations in PVW area

After an OSD is added to the PVW area, you can lock, unlock or read back the OSD.

Locking or unlocking OSD

Right click the OSD and select **Lock** in the context menu to lock the OSD. After locked, the OSD cannot be deleted.

After locked, right click the OSD and select **Unlock** in the context men to unlock the OSD. After unlocked, the OSD can be deleted.

- Reading back OSD

When you refresh the Web page or log in to the system again, the PVW area does not display the OSD image. Right click the OSD and select **Read Back** to display the OSD in the PVW and PGM area.

7.3.5 LOGO

7.3.5.1 Adding LOGO

Add LOGO images to the Web page and send those images to the NovaPro UHD.

Step 1 On the Programming page, click LOGO on the left to show the LOGO list.



- Step 2 Click Image to pop up a window where you can select a LOGO image.
- Step 3 Select a desired local image, and then click **Open** to pop up the LOGO settings window.

Figure	7-22	LOGO	settings
i iguic	1-22	LOOO	Setunga



• Crop: Crop the imported LOGO image and use the cropped image as the BKG.

The highlighted area is the area to be kept. Click and drag the area to change its position, and drag its edge to change its size.

After the settings, click \bigotimes at the bottom-right corner of the area to cancel the selection, or click \bigvee to confirm the settings.

			LOGO Settir	ngs			x
- Crop	Scale	Replace					
			A)				
			<u> </u>				
							¢
							100%
	Initial X		+ px	Initial Y		+ px	
	Width	540 —	+ рх	Height	101 —	+) px	
					Apply	Cance	3

 Initial X: Set the horizontal initial coordinate of the top-left corner of the cropped area on the original image.



- Initial Y: Set the vertical initial coordinate of the top-left corner of the cropped area on the original image.
- Width: Set the width of the cropped image.
- Height: Set the height of the cropped image.
- Scale: Scale the imported image.

LOGO Settings	x
Crop Scale Replace	
NOVASTAR	 € 100%
	Q
✓ Keep aspect ratio	
Width 342 - + px Height 64 - + px	
Apply Cancel	\supset

- Keep aspect ratio: After this item is selected, when you adjust the width or height, the system will
 automatically calculate the height or width based on the set aspect ratio.
- Width: The LOGO image width after scaling
- Height: The LOGO image height after scaling
- Replace: Select a new BKG image and replace the current one.
- Step 4 Click Apply to save the edited LOGO image to LOGO list and send the LOGO image to the NovaPro UHD.

7.3.5.2 LOGO Operations

Loading LOGO

Click a LOGO in the LOGO list to load the LOGO image to the editing area. The LOGO is always located at the top. The LOGO priority cannot be adjusted.

Click at the top-right corner of the LOGO to delete it.

LOGO Operations

BKG list operations

Hover the mouse over the LOGO list to show the LOGO operation menu.

LOGO		~
	+ Image	
	LOGO1 512x274	Ó C
	LOGO2 480x344	

- Deleting LOGO

Click mark to a LOGO and select **OK** in the displayed dialog box to delete the selected LOGO.

- Editing LOGO

Click next to a LOGO to pop up the LOGO settings window to re-edit or replace the current LOGO.

LOGO operations in PVW area

After a LOGO is added to the PVW area, you can lock, unlock or read back the LOGO.

Locking or unlocking LOGO

Right click the LOGO and select **Lock** in the context menu to lock the LOGO. After locked, the LOGO cannot be deleted.

After locked, right click the LOGO and select **Unlock** in the context men to unlock the LOGO. After unlocked, the LOGO can be deleted.

Reading back LOGO

When you refresh the Web page or log in to the system again, the PVW area does not display the LOGO image. Right click the LOGO and select **Read Back** to display the LOGO in the PVW and PGM area.

7.3.6 Transition Settings

Figure 7-23 Transition settings



- SWAP: When selected, click **TAKE** or **CUT** to interchange the PVW and PGM display. When deselected, the PVW and PGM displays are the same.
- Cut: Set the PVW to PGM transition effect.





- : Set the transition duration. Enter a value directly in the text box or click +/- to adjust the value. The value ranges from 0.5s to 2.0s and defaults to 0.5s.
- TAKE: Send the PVW to PGM with a transition effect. •
- CUT: Send the PVW to PGM without a transition effect. •
- Editing Area: Set the layout for the PVW and PGM area. The supported layouts are and and ٠

7.3.7 PGM Edit

When you need to change the output image of a certain layer and keep the others unchanged, this function is your ideal choice.

Step 1 Click **PGM Edit** in the top right of the PGM area to enable the PGM editing function.



PGM edit

Step 2 Change the output image directly as required.

7.4 Preset

7.4.1 Saving Presets

Step 1 After you have completed the layer settings on the Programming page, click Save Preset on the upper-right of the PVW area to pop up the preset saving window.



Step 2 Select a preset.

The system will save the current screen information to the selected preset. The selected preset is highlighted.

Figure 7-26	Saved presets
-------------	---------------

	Save F	Preset	x
Preset 1	Preset 2	Preset 3	Preset 4
Preset 5	Preset 6	Preset 7	Preset 8
Preset 9	Preset 10	Preset 11	Preset 12
Preset 13	Preset 14	Preset 15	Preset 16

Click at the top-right corner of the saved preset, and rename the preset in the text box.

7.4.2 Loading Presets

You can load the preset by clicking the **Load Preset** button on the **Programming** page, or directly clicking a preset on the **Preset** page.

• Loading presets by clicking the Load Preset button

On the **Programming** page, click **Load Preset**. On the displayed preset loading dialog box, click a saved preset to load it to the screen.

• Loading presets by clicking a preset on the Preset page

On the **Preset** page, click a saved preset in the preset list on the left to load the selected preset to the screen.

Empty presets cannot be loaded.





7.4.3 Preset Operations

- Click **Clear All** below the preset list to clear all the saved presets, including the preset data and names.
- Click **Import** to import the presets. After the importing, all the current saved presets will be cleared.
- Clear Export to export the saved presets as preset files which can be imported easily in future use.
- Context menu
 - Right click a saved preset to access the context menu. Select Copy to copy the preset and select Clear to clear the preset.
 - After Copy is selected, right click another preset and select Paste to paste the preset you selected previously.

7.5 Settings

7.5.1 Output Settings

Output Settings	Resolution
AUX Settings	
Test Pattern	Output Color
Sync Mode	Brightness 50 - +
System Mode	Contrast 50 - +
Network Settings	Hue 0 – +
HDR Settings	Saturation 50 - +
Low Latency	Gamma 1.00 - +
Firmware Update	Reset

- Resolution: Select a frame rate from the drop-down list next to Frame Rate.
- Output Color: Set the output image quality by adjusting the values of brightness, contrast, hue and saturation.

Menu	Description
Brightness	Adjust the brightness of the layer image. The value ranges from 0 to 100, and defaults to 50 .
Contrast	Adjust the contrast of the layer image. The value ranges from 0 to 100, and defaults to 50 .
Hue	Adjust the hue of the layer image. The value ranges from -180 to $+180$, and defaults to 0 .
Saturation	Adjust the saturation of the layer image. The value ranges from 0 to 100, and defaults to 50 .
Gamma	Adjust the image distortion degree from the input to output. The greater the value is, the more distorted the image will be. The value ranges from 0.25 to 4.00.

• MVR Settings: Set the output frame rate for the MVR connector.

7.5.2 AUX Settings

Output Settings	Enable
AUX Settings	Follow Preset
Test Pattern	AUX Scaling 🥚 Full Screen 🔷 Proportional
	AUX Source HDMI-6 V
Sync Mode	

- Enable: Select **Enable** to turn on the AUX function. It is deselected by default.
- Follow Preset: Set whether the AUX follows the preset during switching.
 - Selected: If the preset has AUX data, the AUX input source will be switched during preset switching.
 - Deselected: The AUX input source will not be switched during preset switching.
- AUX Scaling: Set the AUX display mode.
 - Full Screen: Make the image display in full screen.
 - Proportional: Scale the image proportionally and then display it on the screen.
- AUX Source: Select a desired AUX source. The options include all the input sources, PVW and PGM.

7.5.3 Test Pattern

Test pattern is used to test the display effect and working status of the LED screen. Test patterns include **Pure Color**, **Gradient**, **Grid**, **Brightness**, **Spacing** and **Speed**.



- Normal: Close the test pattern and display the current playback image normally.
- All the test patterns
- Brightness: Set the brightness of the test pattern. The value ranges from 1 to 4, and defaults to 3.
- Spacing: When the test pattern is gradient or grid, the item is available. When the test pattern is pure color, the item is unavailable. The value ranges from 1 to 8, and defaults to 5.
- Speed: When the test pattern is grid, the item is available and is used to set the moving speed of the grid. When the test pattern is pure color or gradient, the item is unavailable. The value ranges from 1 to 4, and defaults to **3**.

7.5.4 Synchronization Mode

Select a synchronization signal to synchronize all the linked device units and make the output images on all the devices display in sync.



Enable		
Sync Source	GENLOCK	~
	Apply	

- Step 1 Select Enable to turn on the synchronization function.
- Step 2 Select a synchronization source from the drop-down list next to Sync Source.

The NovaPro UHD allows an external Genlock source or the connected input source to be used as the sync source. If the resolution of the sync source changes or the sync source cable is re-plugged, please re-configure the sync mode.

7.5.5 System Mode

Set the device hot backup status and OPT port working status.

7.5.5.1 Hot Backup

Set the device as the primary or backup device. When the primary device fails or any input source of the primary device is abnormal, the backup device takes over the job automatically to load the LED screen.

Table 7-3 Hot backup

ltem	Description
Normal	The device is not used for any device backup or Ethernet port backup.
Primary	The device is used as the primary device in device backup mode, and is not used for Ethernet port backup.
Backup	The device is used as the backup device in device backup mode, and is not used for Ethernet port backup.

Table 7-4 Hot backup

Output Settings	Hot Backup 💿 Primary 💿 Backup	OPT Status Copy Hot Backup		
AUX Settings		- Conv -		
Test Pattern	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 Port 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	OPT 3 4		
Sync Mode		Сору		
System Mode	Descriptions:	Descriptions:		
Network Settings	1 No signal is accessed to Ethernet port 1.	A signal is accessed to OPT 1.		
Hothon Coungo	A signal is accessed to Ethernet port 1 and this port serves as the primary port	1 No signal is accessed to OPT 1.		
HDR Settings		Copy OPT port works in Copy mode.		
Low Latency	Ethernet port 1 serves as the backup port.	Hot Backup OPT port works in Hot Backup mode.		
	A signal is accessed to Ethernet port 1 and this port serves as the backup port.			

Note:

For detailed Ethernet port status descriptions, please see Descriptions on the System Mode page.

7.5.5.2 OPT Status

The NovaPro UHD supports both **Copy** and **Hot Backup** (default) modes for OPT ports. OPT 1 copies the data on Ethernet ports 1 to 8, and OPT 2 copies the data on Ethernet ports 9 to 16.

• Hot Backup: OPT 3 serves as the hot backup for OPT 1, and OPT 4 serves as the hot backup for OPT 2.



• Copy: OPT 3 serves as the copy for OPT 1, and OPT 4 serves as the copy for OPT 2.









7.5.6 Network Settings

Set the device IP address and subnet mask. When the IP is changed, enter the new IP address into the address bar to log in to the Web page again.

IP Address	172		16		12	215
Subnet Mask	255		255		255	0
Gateway	172		16		12	1
Apply Reset						

Note:

If the device is on the public network, do not change the IP address randomly.

7.5.7 HDR Settings

HDR is the acronym for High-Dynamic Range. HDR function can greatly enhance the display image quality, allowing for a more clear and vivid image when the device is used together with the NovaStar A8s/A10s Plus receiving cards.

Output Settings	Enable		
AUX Settings	Peak Screen Brightness 1000 - +		
Test Pattern	Ambient Brightness 30 - +		
Sync Mode	Low Grayscale Mode 15 - +		
System Mode	Apply Reset		
Network Settings	Only HDR10 video source is supported currently.		
HDR Settings			
Menu	Description		
	Adjust the screen brightness under normal operation. The value ranges from 100 to 10000, and defaults to 1000. Unit: Nit		
Peak Screen Brightness	Adjust the screen brightness under normal operation. The value ranges from 100 to 10000, and defaults to 1000. Unit: Nit		
Peak Screen Brightness Ambient Brightness	Adjust the screen brightness under normal operation. The value ranges from 100 to 10000, and defaults to 1000. Unit: Nit Display the ambient brightness.		
Peak Screen Brightness Ambient Brightness	Adjust the screen brightness under normal operation.The value ranges from 100 to 10000, and defaults to 1000. Unit: NitDisplay the ambient brightness.The value ranges from 0 to 200, and defaults to 30. Unit: Nit		

Figure 7-29	HDR settings
	TIDIN SELLING

7.5.8 Low Latency

Low latency reduces the input source signal latency from input to output image of the NovaPro UHD. This function can realize 2-frame delay from sending card to receiving card when the device is used together with NovaStar Armor series receiving cards.

Select Low Latency to turn on this function.

Output Settings	Low Latency
AUX Settings	Horizontal pixels loaded by single Ethernet port cannot exceed 512.
Test Pattern	
Sync Mode	
System Mode	
Network Settings	
HDR Settings	
Low Latency	

Note:

- The loading width of a single Ethernet port should be no greater than 512 pixels when low latency function is enabled.
- The supported Armor series receiving cards include the A8/A8s/A9s/A10s Plus.

7.5.9 Firmware Update

- Step 1 Go to Settings > Firmware Update to enter the update page.
- Step 2 Click mext to **Update File** to select the update file.
- Step 3 The system will parse the update file package automatically, and display the device current versions and update package versions.

NOVASTAR (NovaPro) UHD)		Configuration	류 Programming
Output Settings	Device 172.16.12.215	Update File		
AUX Settings				
Test Pattern				
Sync Mode				
System Mode				
Network Settings				
HDR Settings				
Low Latency				
Firmware Update				
Date and Time				
Factory Reset				
Change Password				
Self-Test				

Figure 7-30 Firmware update

Step 4 Select the desired items.



Step 5 Click Update.

Note:

After the firmware update, please reset the device to factory settings.

7.5.10 Date and Time

Set the device date and time.

Select **Set date and time automatically** and the device will automatically read the date and time from the connected PC.





7.5.11 Factory Reset

When you have updated the device or you want to delete some device information, reset the device to factory settings to quickly clear the unwanted files and reset the parameters to default settings.



Figure 7-32	Factory reset
-------------	---------------

Output Settings	Factory Reset
AUX Settings	Save IP
Test Pattern	Factory Reset
Sync Mode	
System Mode	
Network Settings	
HDR Settings	
Low Latency	
Firmware Update	
Date and Time	
Factory Reset	
Change Password	
Self-Test	

Select Save IP to reset all the device settings to factory settings, except for the device IP address.

Note:

After the firmware update, please reset the device to factory settings.

7.5.12 Change Password

Change the login password. The default password is "888888888".

Figure 7-33 Change password

Output Settings	Old Password	Please enter your old password.	*
AUX Settings	New Password	Please enter your new password.	* 8 characters, including numbers and letters
Test Pattern	Confirm Password	Please enter your new password aga]•
Sync Mode		Apply	
System Mode			
Network Settings			
HDR Settings			
Low Latency			
Firmware Update			
Date and Time			
Factory Reset			
Change Password			

Step 2 Enter your current password in the **Old Password** area.

- Step 3 Enter your new password both in the **New Password** and **Confirm Password** text boxes. The two passwords you entered must be the same.
- Step 4 Click **Apply** to confirm and apply the change.

Note:

The password must contain 8 characters, including letters and numbers.

If you forget your password, use the super password "NovaStar" to log in to the Web page, and then set a new password for login. The super password cannot be deleted or changed.

7.5.13 Self-Test

When the device fails, diagnose the device for quick troubleshooting, and feedback the result to NovaStar for more help.

Output Settings	Device 172.16.12.215 Test			
AUX Settings				
Test Pattern				
Sync Mode				
Quetam Mada	VCCBRAM			
System woke	TEAMP			
Network Settings				
HDR Settings		113.01(MH2)	113.01(MHz)	
Low Latency				
Firmware Update				
Date and Time	MMCM_LOCK			
Factory Reset				
Change Password		162.50(MHz)	162.50(MHz)	
		124.99(MHz)	162.50(MHz)	
	TEAMP-CPU			
	PROGRAM			



8

Specifications

Overall Specifications				
Electrical Specifications	Power connector	100–240V~, 50/60Hz, 7.2A–3.5A		
		Dual redundant power supplies		
	Power consumption	180 W		
Operating	Operating temperature	-10°C to +60°C		
Environment	Operating humidity	0% to 80%, non-condensing		
	Storage humidity	0% to 95%, non-condensing		
Physical	Dimensions	482.6 mm × 183.9 mm × 497.5 mm		
Specifications	Net weight	21 kg		
	Gross weight	42 kg		
Packing		2x Power cords		
Information		• 1x DVI cable		
		• 1x USB cable		
	Accessories	1x Ethernet cable		
		• 1x HDMI cable		
		• 1x DP cable		
		1x Mini DP to DP cable		
		 46x Silicone dustproof plugs 		
		• 1x USB drive (16 GB)		
		1x Custom Letter		
		1x Quick Start Guide		
		 1x Certificate of Approval 		
		1x Safety Manual		
	Flight case	531 mm × 286 mm × 786 mm		
Certifications		FCC, IC, UL/CUL, CB, CE, RoHS 10, EAC, KC, RCM, PSE		
		Note:		
		If the product does not have the relevant certifications required by the countries or regions where it is to be sold, please apply for the certifications yourself or contact NovaStar to apply for them.		
Noise Level (typic	al at 25°C/77°F)	57 dB(A)		

9

Video Source Features

Input Connector	Bit Depth		Max. Input Resolution
• HDMI 2.0 • DP 1.2	8-bit	RGB 4:4:4	4096×2160@60Hz 8192×1080@60Hz
		YCbCr 4:4:4	
		YCbCr 4:2:2	
		YCbCr 4:2:0	Not supported
	10-bit	RGB 4:4:4	4096×2160@30Hz 8192×1080@30Hz
		YCbCr 4:4:4	
		YCbCr 4:2:2	4096×2160@60Hz
			Not supported
	12-bit	PCB 4:4:4	4096×2160@30Hz 8192×1080@30Hz
		KGB 4.4.4	
		YCbCr 4:4:4	4006-2160@604-
		10001 4.2.2	8192×1080@60Hz
		YCbCr 4:2:0	Not supported
HDMI 1.3	8-bit	RGB 4:4:4	1920×1080@60Hz
		YCbCr 4:4:4	
		YCbCr 4:2:2	
	10-bit	RGB 4:4:4	
		YCbCr 4:4:4	
		YCbCr 4:2:2	
	12-bit	RGB 4:4:4	
		YCbCr 4:4:4	
		YCbCr 4:2:2	
12G-SDI	 Max. input resolution: 4096×2160@60Hz Does not support input resolution and bit depth settings. Supports ST-2082-1 (12G), ST-2081-1 (6G), ST-424 (3G) and ST-292 (HD). 		

Copyright © 2021 Xi'an NovaStar Tech Co., Ltd. All Rights Reserved.

No part of this document may be copied, reproduced, extracted or transmitted in any form or by any means without the prior written consent of Xi'an NovaStar Tech Co., Ltd.

Statement

Thank you for choosing NovaStar's product. This document is intended to help you understand and use the product. For accuracy and reliability, NovaStar may make improvements and/or changes to this document at any time and without notice. If you experience any problems in use or have any suggestions, please contact us via the contact information given in this document. We will do our best to solve any issues, as well as evaluate and implement any suggestions.

